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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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Board of Directors

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chen Binghui (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Zhifeng

Mr. Wu Shoumin

Mr. Qiu Jianfa (Re-designated as executive Director from
non-executive Directors on 25 March 2013)

Non-executive Director:

Mr. Lin Shuqging (Deceased on 4 March 2013)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Kwong Kwan Tong

Ms. Xue Fang

Ms. Tong Jinzhi (Appointed on 3 December 2012)
Mr. Yang Guohao (Resigned on 3 December 2012)

Audit Committee

Mr. Kwong Kwan Tong (Chairman)

Ms. Xue Fang

Ms. Tong Jinzhi (Appointed on 3 December 2012)
Mr. Yang Guohao (Resigned on 3 December 2012)

Remuneration Committee

Ms. Tong Jinzhi (Chairwoman and appointed on
3 December 2012)
Mr. Yang Guohao (Resigned on 3 December 2012)
Mr. Kwong Kwan Tong
Ms. Xue Fang

Nomination Committee

Ms. Xue Fang (Chairwoman)

Mr. Kwong Kwan Tong

Ms. Tong Jinzhi (Appointed on 3 December 2012)
Mr. Yang Guohao (Resigned on 3 December 2012)
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Company Secretary

Mr. Chan Cho Chak, CPA (Practising), FCCA
(Resigned on 1 June 2012)

Mr. Yao Yan Ping Francis, CPA (Practising), FCCA
(Resigned on 1 March 2013)

Mr. Loo Koon Tung James, HKICPA, CPA (Aust)
(Appointed on 1 March 2013)

Authorised Representatives

Mr. Chen Binghui
Mr. Loo Koon Tung, James

Registered Office

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11
Bermuda

Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong

Unit 1003, 10th Floor
No. 69 Jervois Street
Hong Kong

Head Office in the PRC

Wenyi Road

Jing Yang County
Xianyang City
Shaanxi Province
PRC

Legal Advisers to the Company

As to Hong Kong Law
Angela Ho & Associates

As to Bermuda Law
Conyers Dill & Pearman

As to PRC Law
Dacheng Law Offices
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Auditor

Martin C.K. Pong & Company

Compliance Adviser

Tanrich Capital Limited

Hong Kong Share Registrar
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Principal Banker

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Stock Code

2128

Company Website

www.goldenshield.com.cn
www.goldenshield.com.hk
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Revenue decreased by approximately 23.8% to approximately
RMB755.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2012 from
approximately RMB991.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2011.

Gross profit decreased by approximately 35.6% to approximately
RMB112.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2012 from
approximately RMB174.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2011.

Net profit margin decreased to approximately 5.4% for the year ended
31 December 2012 from approximately 10.1% for the year ended 31
December 2011 whereas profit attributable to owners of the Company
decreased by approximately 59.7% to approximately RMB40.6 million
for the year ended 31 December 2012 from approximately RMB100.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2011.

Basic earnings per share is approximately RMB4.31 cents for the year
ended 31 December 2012, of which its calculation is based on the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 941,900,000.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
financial year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: nil).
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The board of Directors (the “Board”) of Golden Shield Holdings (Industrial)
Limited (“Golden Shield” or “the Company”) is pleased to announce the
audited consolidated annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) for the 12 months ended 31 December 2012.

The 2012 was a very challenging year. The textile industry in China was
significantly affected by the Eurozone indebtedness and US fiscal cliff. The
recovery pace of global economic still slow and the market shockwave
undermined customers’ sentiment. As a result, 2012 has been proved a
difficult year for the industry.

With the market demand shift to higher quality products, the demand for
various middle and high-end textile products and apparel is expected to grow
along with domestic consumption trend. To maintain competitiveness of the
Group, we have shifted the product mix to cater for the consumption trend.
We also continue to diversify the production bases where it can better service
our customers by providing various range of high quality products.

During 2012, the demand for combed cotton yarn products remain strong.
We devoted substantial time and effort in calibration and trail run of the Yinhe
production plant, the production facilities for premium combed yarn products.
Our production capacity for the combed yarn product is increased
substantially, and as the demand for the high quality product remain strong,
the full potential and the economic benefit has not yet been realized by the
Group in 2012,

As the customers’ demand for better quality of life and better textile products
continue to grow, the Group will continue to streamline its operation by
focusing on the cotton yarn business, particular on the combed yarn
products. We expect this is the right strategy for the Group as it can meet
with domestic consumption trend.

We will continue to reduce operating costs and improve production efficiency.
The Group will strive to gain a bigger market share by focusing on high quality
products. With stable cotton price and huge consumption in domestic
market, the textile industry will prudently optimistic in future. Looking ahead,
the management believes that the Group can benefit from the market which
will be stabilized at a lower operating level.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
£ A (8D

On behalf of the Board and the management, | would like to especially thank
the management team and the entire staff for their efforts and contributions
and also extend my sincere gratitude to the shareholders, investors,
customers, suppliers and business partners for their unfailing support.

Executive Director and Chairman
Mr. Chen Binghui

25 March 2013
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Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Binghui (B 3R #8), aged 48, is the Chairman, executive Director and
the managing director of the Company. He is responsible for the Group’s
general management, corporate development and strategic planning of the
day to day operation of the Group. Mr. Chen graduated from Fujian
Agriculture University (82 2% X&) (now known as Fujian Agriculture and
Forestry University ({82 2 AZ2) with a bachelor degree in agricultural
economics and management in 1989 and also holds a master degree in
economics awarded by The School of Economics at Xiamen University (EF9
RELEERT) in 2003. Prior to joining the Group in 2001, he worked in
Shishi branch of Agricultural Bank of China (#F B 22 R17A T X 17) from
1989 to 1996 as supervisor. Between 1996 and 2001, Mr. Chen worked for
Shishi City Hong Ji Trading and Development Company Limited (£ 5 =&
B oBaERERAT),
clothing, footwear and leather product trading, as a general manager

a privately-owned company engaged in textile,

responsible for its corporate planning and daily operations. Mr. Chen has
been the chairman of Jing Yang Golden Shield since its establishment in
2001 and has approximately 11 years of experience in the cotton textile
industry. Since 2007 and 2009, he has been a deputy to the People’s
Congress of Jing Yang County (%[5 A AR Z) and Xian Yang City (Bf5
AKRR ) respectively. In February 2011, Mr. Chen was awarded as one of
the 2010 Outstanding Entrepreneurs in Xian Yang City (BEERZ1M%XK) by
the People’s Government of Xian Yang City.

Mr. Chen is one of the shareholders of Shaanxi Golden Shield Textile Co.,
Ltd., a People’s Repubilc of China (“PRC”) domestic enterprise which is
owned as to 90% and 10% by him and Mr. Lin respectively. For further details
of Shaanxi Golden Shield, please refer to the section headed “History and
Corporate Structure” and the paragraph headed “lLeased properties” in the
section headed “Business” in the prospectus of the Company dated 28 June
2011 (the “Prospectus”).
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
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Mr. Chen Zhifeng (FR&I£), aged 47, is an executive Director and a deputy
vice general manager of Jing Yang Golden Shield responsible for its general
management. Mr. Chen graduated from Shaanxi Xian Yang Textile Vocational
Institute (B 75 @5 47 4% T 5 24%) (now known as Shaanxi Polytechnic Institute
(PRVE I 258 5 BT E2B)) majoring in cotton textile manufacturing in 1986 and
also received a bachelor degree in economics and management from the
School of Distance Learning at China Communist Party Institute (Fp t£ A st &
KR E2FE) in 2000 and master degree in economics and management from
the Shaanxi Province Communist Party Institute (BR7a& & £1) in 2005. He
has over 23 years of experience in the cotton textile industry and worked for a
number of state-owned cotton textile manufacturing enterprises, including
Jing Yang Spinning Mill from 1986 to 1991, in various capacities including
technician, engineer and general manager, and 13th Weaving Mill, a then
state-owned textile enterprise in Shaanxi Province, from 2000 to 2005 in
capacities of factory manager (%) and committee member of Communist
Party of China (2% % 8). He also served as a supervisor of yarn division (47
% e 53 1), head of export and import department (4 1 A #F ) and deputy
chief engineer (214 T#2#f) from 1991 to 2000 in Northwest No. 2 Cotton
Group Co., Ltd (FadL=1%%EMEARAFR]), a company engaged in the
manufacturing and sales of cotton textile products. Mr. Chen joined the
Group in November 2009.

Mr. Wu Shoumin (R5FR), aged 62, is an executive Director and the financial
controller of the Group responsible for the Group’s financial control and tax
matters. Mr Wu has approximately 41 years of experience in tax, finance and
accounting. He joined Jing Yang Spinning Mill, a state-owned textile
enterprise in Shaanxi Province, as an account clerk in 1969 and promoted to
accounting supervisor in 1988. After the Group’s acquisition of the production
facilities of Jing Yang Spinning Mill in 2001, he joined the Group and was
appointed as financial controller of Jing Yang Golden Shield in May 2002.

Mr. Qiu Jianfa (BEBZ’%), aged 42, was a non-executive Director of the
Company until he was re-designated as an executive Director on 25 March
2018. He is the founder of the Group responsible for its overall strategic
direction development. Mr. Qiu graduated from Jin Jiang County Vocational
School ()T &2 247) (now known as Fujian Jin Jiang Vocational School (f&
R B TR P EEER) majoring in finance and accounting in 1991. He had
worked in Shishi Rural Credit Cooperatives (f kit EA{E A& fELEE S ) (now
known as Fujian Shishi Rural Cooperative Bank ({&if 8 2414 1E4R1T)) as
accountant from 1994 to 2004 and a privately-owned clothing manufacturing
company, Shishi City Hongjiahao Textile Company Limited (&% &7 5 AR
#4835 BB A 7)), as vice general manager from 2004 to 2007. Since 2007,
he has been working in a privately-owned property development and
management company, Dalin City Fengyu Property Development Limited (A
EHUMEMERZEREAR]), as a project development manager
responsible for property project planning and execution. After the
establishment of Jing Yang Golden Shield in 2001, he has engaged in cotton
textile business and has been the general manager of Jing Yang Golden
Shield since then.
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Non-executive Director

Mr. Lin Shuqing (##&), aged 41, a non-executive Director, is responsible
for the strategic development and supervision of the Group. Mr. Lin graduated
from Fujian Institute of Financial Administrators (@24 & 12 %20 £6%) (now
known as Fujian Jiangxia College (&3 1 /E £2f%)) majoring in finance in 1999.
He had worked for Shishi City Qiao Lian Logistics Company Limited ( /& %8
BB & /2 7)), a PRC travel agency company, as financial manager,
from 1991 to 2000 and Shishi City Xin Cheng Chemicals Trading Company
Limited (B {ERIETTEERAF), a PRC chemicals and textile
wholesaler, as sales manager, from 2001 to 2003. He passed away on 4
March 2013. Prior to his passing away, he worked in Shishi City Xin Yi
Chemicals Trading Company Limited (R mE&E L T T B AR A A), a PRC
chemicals and textile trading company as the authorised representative and
general manager since 2004. He joined the Group in 2001 and had
approximately 11 years of experience in the cotton textile industry. Mr. Lin
was also a shareholder of Shaanxi Golden Shield, a PRC domestic enterprise
which was jointly controlled by him and Mr. Chen.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Kwong Kwan Tong (B/EE), aged 47, is an independent non-executive
Director. He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants. Mr. Kwong has over 25 years of experience in accounting,
auditing and financial control through his various employment with different
companies in Hong Kong and the PRC. During the tenure in his career, he
was an independent non-executive director, chairman of audit committee,
member of remuneration and nomination committee of China Investment
Fund Company Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock
code 612) from 2008 to 2010. He is currently an independent non-executive
director of Qunxing Paper Holdings Company Limited (a company listed on
the Stock Exchange with stock code 3868) and the financial controller and
company secretary of Weichai Power Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the
Stock Exchange with stock code 2338 and Shenzhen Stock Exchange). Mr.
Kwong joined the Group in 2010.
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Ms. Xue Fang (%755), aged 49, is an independent non-executive Director.
Ms. Xue graduated at Shaanxi Province Finance and Economic Institute (B8 78
BEHEER) (now known as Shaanxi Province Technical Institute of Finance
and Economics (k7 B AR B 35 £ 917 £2B5T)) majoring in corporate accounting in
1987 and received her bachelor degree in law from Xi’an Political Institute (7§
ZHCAERT) in 2005. She has more than 20 years of experience in accounting
and financial control matters with the finance department of state-owned
Shaanxi Steel Factory (BRFEsfifE) from 1987 to 1994, subsequently merged
with Shaanxi Province Military Food Supplies and Procurement Centre (BR7g
A ERRE ML ELL) since 1994. She has served as its assistant accountant
since 1993. Ms. Xue joined the Group in 2010.

Mr. Yang Guohao (BEZ), aged 49, is an independent non-executive
Director. He graduated from Dalian Maritime College (A& /&iEZ ) (now
known as Dalian Maritime University (K38 & % A £2), with a bachelor degree
in electrical engineering for shipbuilding in 1984 and obtained his master
degree in electrical engineering for shipbuilding from Marine Engineering
College (BE IL2Z8E) (now known as China People’s Liberation Army
Marine Engineering University (42 B A RZMEGE TIEAZ)) in 1989. Mr.
Yang has extensive teaching and research experience in maritime engineering
discipline and was a vice president and committee member of Communist
Party at Jimei University (5835 KXE8) in Fujian Province until December 2010.
Currently, he is the full time secretary of Communist Party Committee at
Xiamen University of Technology (& F932 T £3F5). He resigned on 3 December
2012.

Ms. Tong Jinzhi (E$%54), aged 49, was graduated from Xiamen University
with a Bachelor Degree and a Master Degree in Finance in 1984 and 1987
respectively. Ms. Tong was also awarded a Doctor Degree in Finance by
Xiamen University in 1997. Ms. Tong started teaching at Xiamen University in
the PRC since 1987 and is currently a professor, PhD supervisor and head of
department of Public Economics of Xiamen University. Ms. Tong joined the
Group in December 2012.
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Senior Management

Mr. Dang Ming (2 88), aged 48, is the director of operations of Jing Yang
Golden Shield responsible for the management and supervision of its sale
and purchase department since 2010. Mr. Dang graduated from Shaanxi
Xian Yang Textile Vocational Institute (B8 78 & 5 454 T 2 £24%) (now known as
Shaanxi Polytechnic Institute (B8 78 1 3 B 32 517 225%)) majoring in mechanical
engineering in 1983 and obtained a bachelor degree in management
engineering through distance learning from Xi’an Electronic Engineering and
Technology University (FAZ & FRHZAE) in 1989. He has over 15 years of
experience in the cotton textile industry and began his career with 13th
Weaving Mill, a then state-owned textile enterprise in Shaanxi Province. He
was appointed as a deputy factory manager of 13th Weaving Mill in 2003.
After the acquisition of the production facilities of 13th Weaving Mill by the
Group, Mr. Dang joined the Group and was appointed as vice general
manager of Jing Yang Golden Shield in 2009.

Mr. Xu Xiaoniu (5F/)\4F), aged 47, is the director of production of Jing Yang
Golden Shield responsible for the supervision of operations and technical
aspects of all of its production plants since 2010. Mr. Xu has over 16 years of
experience in the cotton textile industry. He joined Jing Yang Spinning Mill as
a technician in 1985 after he obtained a bachelor degree in Light Industry
Mechanical Engineering from Northwest Light Industry Institute (Fa1bs% T 2
Ep7) (now known as Shaanxi University of Science and Technology (B Fg %}
FKE2) in the same year. After the acquisition of production facilities of Jing
Yang Spinning Mill by the Group, Mr. Xu joined the Group in 2001 and was
appointed as an assistant to the chairman since 2002.

Mr. He Baomin (faJ{® ), aged 51, is the vice general manager of Jing Yang
Golden Shield responsible for the supervision and production management of
Yongle Production Plant since 2009. He graduated from Shaanxi Xian Yang
Textile Vocational Institute (PR 54544k T3 24) (now known as Shaanxi
Polytechnic Institute (PR T 353 FITE2FT) majoring in cotton textile
manufacturing in 1983 and also received a bachelor degree in corporate
management through distance learning from Northwest Light Industry
Institute (FEHLEE T2 £257) (now known as Shaanxi University of Science and
Technology (BRFEEHE A E2)) in 1989. Mr. He has over 18 years of experience
in the cotton textile industry. Prior to joining the Group in 2009, he worked as
a production manager in Northwest No. 7 Weaving Plant (751t 25+ 1247 &),
currently known as Xian Yang China Resources Textile Co., Ltd (G52 E 4%
KA BR A 7)) from 1983 to 2004 and served as the general manager of Yong
Sing Textile Company Limited (7 %5 4% 8 R A &) from 2004 to 2007.
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Mr. Xing Jigang (FiR#£R), aged 48, is the vice general manager of Jing Yang
Golden Shield responsible for the supervision and production management of
Guang Hua Production Plant since 2009. Mr. Xing obtained a bachelor
degree in cotton textile engineering from Northwest Textile Engineering
Institute (FA1L474% T 2 6) (now known as Xi’an Polytechnic University (7%
T KE) in 1987. He has over 12 years of experience in the cotton textile
industry. Prior to joining the Group in 2008, Mr. Xing worked in various
positions (including deputy factory manager) in 13th Weaving Mill from 1987
to 2008 and served as a general manager in Dong Run Textile Company
Limited (3B 474%5 R 2 &) from 2005 to 2008.

Mr. Wang Wentao (£ 3E), aged 46, is the vice general manager of Jing
Yang Golden Shield responsible for the supervision and production
management of Dali Production Plant since 2009. Mr. Wang received a
bachelor degree in cotton textile engineering from Northwest Textile
Engineering Institute (FF3L#T4& T %Ft) (now known as Xi'an Polytechnic
University (Fa%z T2 KE2) in 1989. He has over 16 years of experience in the
cotton textile industry and joined the Group in 2005 and appointed as vice
general manager in charge of Dali Production Plant after the acquisition of
production facilities of 13th Weaving Mill by the Group in 2008. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Wang worked as the head of production technology
department and deputy factory manager for Shaanxi Province Textile Supply
and Sales Factory (BRPEA {547 4%E) from 1993 to 1999, as deputy factory
manager of Xinjiang Manasi County Long Xing Cotton Spinning Mill (3752 35 4%
HT B2 02 AR 45 4% B7) from 1999 to 2003, as factory manager for Shandong
Linyi Ramie Textile Company Limited (1L B8 Eg T 5= 45 44 A FR A &]) from 2004
to 2005.

Mr. Yao Wen (#k3Z), aged 42, is the vice general manager of Jing Yang
Golden Shield responsible for the supervision and production management of
Jing Yang Production Plant since 2009. Mr. Yao has over 21 years of
experience in the cotton textile industry. He graduated from Shaanxi Xian
Yang Textile Vocational Institute (BtFEJELFS4h4E T2 24;) (now known as
Shaanxi Polytechnic Institute (PRPE T 352 & 1720) in 1989 and was
awarded a bachelor degree in mechanical engineering by Shaanxi Province
Higher Education Self-Learning Examination Board (X5 & S5 #HE 5 2E 5
Z B &)of the Xi’an Jiaotong University (75 %7 2238 K 22) in 1991. He worked as
a technician and production manager in Jing Yang Spinning Mill, a then state-
owned textile enterprise in Shaanxi Province, since 1989. After the acquisition
of the production facilities of Jing Yang Spinning Mill by the Group, Mr. Yao
joined the Group in 2001.
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Mr. Wang Lixin (£32%7), aged 43, head of corporate development of the
Company. Mr. Wang graduated from Xiamen University with a Bachelor
Degree in Finance in 1991. Mr. Wang was also awarded a Master Degree in
Finance by Dongbei University of Finance and Economics in 2000. He has
over 15 years of experience in finance and management. Prior to joining the
Group in 2012, Mr. Wang has been a principal consultant in Xiamen
Tiancheng Foundation Investment Company (EFS AR EZER A EIR AR A7)
since 2006. Between the period from 2002 to 2005, Mr. Wang was a
manager in the office of secretary to the chairman of Guangdong Kelon
Electrical Holdings Company Limited ERRIBEZEZRMER LT (now
known as Hisense Kelon Electrical Holdings Company Limited /G52 & 82
R BBR/AR]) (Stock Code: 00921). Mr. Wang was a general manager in
Shandong Yantai Haolaifu Department Store (LLIE(E&IFHKiEHEAR])
between the period from 1996 to 2001. He worked as a finance administrator
in Shandong Yantai Jinli Property Company* (LI E /& & & H1E#bE A 7)) from
1991 to 1996. He joined the Group in 2012.

Mr. Loo Koon Tung James (E &), aged 40, is the Company Secretary of
the Company. Mr. Loo has over 16 years of experience in the field of auditing
and accounting. Mr. Loo is a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the CPA (Aust.). Mr. Loo holds a
Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University of Sydney and a Master of
Business Administration degree from the Open University of Hong Kong. He
joined the Company in 2013.
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Industry review

The continuing financial difficulties in Europe and fiscal uncertainly in the
United States of America undermined the global economic recovery. During
2012, the demand from overseas market still weak. According to the China
Customs, it recorded RMB254.9 billion total export of textile and apparel
products in 2012, representing a growth of 2.8%. However, the 2012 growth
rate is significantly lower than the 2011, it demonstrated that the international
market was still sluggish.

According to the National Bureau of Statistics of China, the total retail sales of
consumer goods by companies with over RMB20 million annual revenue in
PRC recorded approximately RMB20,716.7 billion, representing a growth of
14.3% when compare to 2011, in which of textile and apparel sector
amounted to RMB977.8 billion, representing of 18% growth rate. Although
the domestic market also experienced a slower pace of growth, the figure
can illustrate the importance of the domestic consumption in the textile and
apparel sector.

Business review

The Group is one of the key cotton textile suppliers in north-western China
offering various types of cotton yarn and grey fabrics to customers spread
across 12 provinces and municipalities in the southern and eastern regions of
PRC. By business segments, the cotton yamn business, grey fabrics business,
and sales of lint cotton accounted for approximately 70.4%, 8.7% and 20.9%
respectively of the Group’s total turnover. For the year ended 31 December
2012, the total sales volume of the Group’s cotton yarns and grey fabric were
19,780 tonnes and 13,613 kilometers respectively.

In 2012, turnover of the cotton yarn business decreased by approximately
23.8% to approximately RMB531.5 million (2011: RMB697.4 million),
accounting for approximately 70.4% (2011: 70.4%) of the Group’s total
turnover.

All the Group’s cotton yarn products are pure cotton yarn products and can
be generally classified into carded yarns and combed yarns. In general, the
selling price of cotton yarns increase with the fineness and combed yarns
have a higher selling prices and stable profit margin than carded yarns, as
combed yarns are more even, compact and smoother.
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B PHLRE ) e e o A (1)

As the customers demand have shifted to high quality cotton yarn such as
combed cotton yarn products, the decline in the cotton yarn business was
mainly due to decrease in sales of carded cotton yarn products. To enhance
the product mix and sustain the profit margin, the Group has been focusing
its business in combed cotton yarn business which is less affected by the
market.

Grey fabric business

The Group has been focusing on shifting its product mix by reducing the grey
fabric output. In 2012, turnover of the grey fabric business amounted to
RMB65.5 million, representing a decrease of 50% when compare to 2011.
The decrease of the grey fabric business was mainly due to the decrease in
average selling price and the market demand for the products.

The Group will continue to provide various grey fabric models but will adjust
the proportion of its business according to the changes of market demands.

Lint cotton trading business

The revenue from lint cotton trading business decreased 2.8% to
approximately RMB158 million when compared to 2011. The decrease in
revenue from lint cotton trading business is mainly due to the decrease in
average selling price while the demand for the products still remain stable for
the year.

Financial Review

Revenue

The following is an analysis of the revenue by major product categories during
the years:
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For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=T-HLEFE

2012 2011

—E——fF —EF——%F
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR®T T % ARET T %
Cotton yarn isFd) 531,530 70.4 697,379 70.4
Grey fabric b2l 65,515 8.7 130,954 13.2
Sales of lint cotton RS 157,997 20.9 162,621 16.4
755,042 100.0 990,954 100.0




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
B e M A (4

Cotton yarn products

Set out below is an analysis of revenue by major cotton yarn categories

offered by the Group during the years:

R4 & m

WEB D BZWEDN

SEER(EE)ERAA
F 3R 2012

TR AKERERFRREHRZEEMR

For the year ended 31 December

BHE+-ZA=1+—-HLEE

Product category Count No. 2012 2011
B J Bl =8 —E_——F —E—
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR®T % ARETFIT %
A. Carded yamns R
Medium-count yarns & 37 40 190 28 19% £283% 26,111 4.9 36,796 5.3
Fine-count yarns 40 4 29to0 58 29 &58% 246,554 46.4 393,644 56.4
High-count yarns S5-3) 60 orabove 603 8k A F 50,494 9.5 128,875 18.5
Sub-total INEE 323,159 60.8 559,315 80.2
B. Combed yarns B L
Fine-count yarns R 29t0 58 29% E58% 208,371 39.2 138,064 19.8
Sub-total NEE 208,371 39.2 138,064 19.8
Total @5t 531,530 100.0 697,379 100.0
Grey fabric product T E G

Set out below is an analysis of revenue of the Group’s grey fabric product

offered during the years:

% 2 W3 5 ¢

TR AKEREBFEAREBZIAME

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+t—HLEFE
Product category Tex No. 2012 2011
= m a5 DB A —B-=fF —ZT——%
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %

ARBT T % ARETT %
Fine-count fabrics MzmA 11t020 1R ZE 2015 65,515 100.0 130,954 100.0
Total =t 65,515 100.0 130,954 100.0
Remark: st -
1) Fine-count fabric 11 to 20 tex (29 count to 55 count)

(1) AR BAIERE20RAEAR (29X 2563 &

X
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Sales volume and average selling price HERFHEE
The following table sets out the sales volume and the average selling prices T XREIIAEBEFEAEEME TEE
by major product categories offered by the Group during the years: DEAZEELRTEHERS

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t-HLEFE

2012 2011
—E—_=F —ET——4%F
Average Average
Total Sales Selling Price Total Sales Selling Price
Volume (Note) Volume (Note)
FHEE FIHEE
BB (B =) HIHE (P &E)
(tonnes/ (tonnes/
kilometres) RMB kilometres) RMB
(Wg,FK) AR (g, F3K) AR
Cotton yarn (tonnes) &b () 19,780 26,872 22,819 30,561
Grey fabric (kilometres) B (FK) 13,613 4.8 25,597 5.1
Sales of lint cotton (tonnes) 57 1% 84 & (I48) 9,395 16,817 9,361 17,372

Note: Average selling prices represent the turnover for the year divided by the total sales it : FHEBARFEEEERUFEZLHE - 318

volume for the year and are expressed in RMB/tonne for cotton yarn and lint cotton WERERMEAARE MERLEAMEBAR
and RMB/metre for grey fabric. H K o
Cotton yarn products B4 E M
Set out below are analysis of sales volume and the average selling prices by T&RBEINAEEREAFEMEE 2 FE18
major cotton yarn categories offered by the Group during the years: WEADBEZEERTHEEIINT:

For the year ended 31 December

BE+tZA=+—-HLEE

Product category Count No. 2012 2011
EmE R X —E-=fF -
tonnes % tonnes %
iz} % 7 %
A. Carded yarns ke
Medium-count yams /1 %7 #) 1910 28 19 £28% 1,200 6.1 1,435 6.3
Fine-count yarns K30 29 to 58 20% £58% 10,086 51.0 13,576 59.5
High-count yarns BX W 60 or above 603 kA 1,710 8.6 3,844 16.8
Sub-total NEF 12,996 65.7 18,855 82.6
B. Combed yarns TE iR
Fine-count yarns K3 2910 58 29X £58% 6,784 34.3 3,964 17.4
Sub-total /NET 6,784 34.3 3,964 17.4

Total st 19,780 100.0 22,819 100.0
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For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-ZA=+—-BLEE

Set out below are analysis of sales volume and the average selling prices of

the Group’s grey fabric product offered during the years:

mZHERFHEBOMN

Product category Count No. 2012 2011
E A8 B S —E-—F —E——F
RMB/tonnes RMB/tonnes
AR W AR 1R

A. Carded yamns Rk
Medium-count yarns R 1910 28 19% £28% 21,759 25,642
Fine-count yarns i3 291t0 58 20% £58% 24,445 28,995
High-count yarns IS4 60 or above 6037 3% A 29,529 33,526
Average price of carded yarns TmABY 2 FHEE 24,866 29,665

B. Combed yarns BmiRyY
Fine-count yarns M5 2910 58 29 =58 30,715 34,829
Average price of combed yarmns 5B 4> 2 B R 30,715 34,829
Average price of cotton yarns BHZ FHE®R 26,872 30,561

Grey fabric product B E &

TR AKERERFREARRBBZIAME

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—-BLEE

Product category Tex No. 2012 2011
EmER AR — —E——F
Kilometres % Kilometres %
FXK % FK %
Fine-count fabrics MK 111020 11 1EE 201§ 13,613 100.0 25,597 100.0
Total BET 13,613 100.0 25,597 100.0
For the year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=+—HLEFE
Product category Tex No. 2012 2011
EmER SR B R —E-CfF —ET——%F
RMB/metre RMB/metre
AR K AR ,/K
Fine-count fabrics 432 A E 11 t0 20 111565 4.8 5.1
Average price of grey fabrics Wz FHER 4.8 5.1
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B PHLRE ) e e o A (1)

The cotton yarn products remain as the major source of revenue for the
Group. The sales of cotton yarn products recorded approximately RMB531.5
millions, representing 70.4% of total sales (2011: 70.4%) for the year ended
31 December 2012.

The revenue derived from the sales of carded cotton yarns decreased by
approximately 42.2% to approximately RMB323.2 million (2011: RMB559.3
million) for the year ended 31 December 2012. Such decrease was caused
by tough business environment and the customers’ demand has shifted to
high quality cotton yarn such as combed cotton yarn products.

Nevertheless, the combed cotton yarn products recorded a revenue of
approximately RMB208.4 million, representing an increase of 50.9% over
2011. As customers are looking for better textiles products, we expect the
combed cotton yarn business will continue to be our key source of revenue in
future.

The revenue derived from the sales of grey fabric decreased by approximately
50.0% to approximately RMB65.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2012 from approximately RMB131.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2011. Such decrease was attributed to the drop of the sales volume of grey
fabrics from approximately 25,597 kilometres to approximately 13,613
kilometres as a result of continuous shift in production mix between cotton
yarn and grey fabrics.

In view of the relatively stable cotton price environment, the Group
commenced lint cotton trading business last year and the revenue
contribution from sales of lint cotton amounted to approximately RMB158.0
million, representing approximately 20.9% of the Group’s total revenue for the
year.
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Cost of sales

HERAIZRNMBAE BEELEIRAR
BEREIEXH(BENERENRE) - TRH
IIREENERFEFREREEKRAE D ZIHE

The cost of sales is mainly represented by lint cotton costs, direct labour
costs and production overheads including depreciation and electricity cost.
The following table sets out a breakdown of the Group’s cost of sales by cost

of production during the years:

B AN BR AR

For the year ended 31 December

BET=A=T-ALFE

2012 2011
—E——fF —F——F

RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ARB TR % AREF T %

Cost components RAEE
Lint cotton 18 520,284 80.9 678,769 83.1
Subcontracting fee SNEE A - 0.0 17,601 2.2
Labour cost &5 TR A 47,335 7.4 53,486 6.6
Electricity BN 30,959 4.8 37,123 4.6
Rental e 24,000 3.7 — 0.0
Depreciation TE 8,778 1.4 8,665 1.0
Other H1ih 9,393 1.5 11,991 1.4
Total production cost 48 EE K AN 640,749 99.7 807,635 98.9
Finished goods movement &Yk & & 1,983 0.3 8,920 1.1
Cost of sales 85 & A A 642,732 100.0 816,555 100.0

Lint cotton cost is primary significant to the Group, accounting for approximately
80.9% and 83.1% of the Group’s overall cost of sales for the years ended 31
December 2012 and 2011 respectively. All lint cotton was purchased from
independent suppliers during the years.

The cost of sales decreased by approximately 21.3% to RMB642.7 million for
the year ended 31 December 2012 from approximately RMB816.6 million for
the year ended 31 December 2011. This was due to a decrement in
consumption of lint cotton as a result of (i) decrease in the production volume
of cotton yarns and (i) decrease in lint cotton average purchase price by
approximately 10.7% over the corresponding period in 2011.

However, the rental charges of RMB24 million for Yinhe production plant (“Yinhe
Production Plant”) was recorded for the year ended 31 December 2012. As
disclosed in the announcement dated 7 February 2013, we entered into an
asset acquisition agreement to acquire the leased production facilities in the
Yinhe Production Plant (the “Leased Production Facilities”). It is expected that
such rental fee will decrease in future.

iR A AEEEERN AN EEEND
REBEE-_ZT——-FR_FT——F+=-/A=
T—HLEFE SAEASEBHEEXNELD
80.9% % 83.1% - REZMEFE N + F1 B K 13
I R RS -

REBE-_E——F+-_A=1+—HILFERX
ZHE KAL) B AR EG642,700,0007C K EH
E-E——F+-A=+—BIFEHAR
#£ 816,600,000 7T /&, > £921.3% © Lt T A A B2 1%
HEEEAFME RRAR()GBYZEESRD
iRz FHOREBRR - —— FRH
TFE#110.7% ©

R MNEBEE-_E——F+-_A=+—81t
FECBALER(HETEER)HSHS X
A R #24,000,0007T c BB B =T — =4
ZAtRAZAHHEE AEEY—EE
EWERSE AKBRIEER2AELE
RE((HELEERE) - BHAZEEESE
N

21



Golden Shield Holdings (Industrial) Limited
Annual Report 2012

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BB W M o B ()

Gross profit and gross profit margin

EFR EFE
Set out below is an analysis of the Group’s gross profit and gross profit TEXR&EHIAEBREBFEZEFNLEFX

margin during the years: ST

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-BLEE

2012 2011

—g-—f %
Gross Gross
Gross profit profit margin Gross profit profit margin
ERX ERME el EHME
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR TR % ARBTT %
Cotton yarn 184 85,900 16.2 131,507 18.9
Grey fabric T m 13,971 21.3 29,617 22.6
Sales of lint cotton AR iHE 12,439 7.9 13,275 8.1
112,310 14.9 174,399 17.6

Cotton yarn products B4 E m

TRENAEBERERFEMBERZEIER
WEB DB ENRENEDMN

Set out below is an analysis of gross profit and gross profit margin by major
cotton yarn categories offered by the Group during the years:

For the year ended 31 December

BE+tZA=+—-HLEE

2012 2011
—E——F —ET——%F
Gross Gross
Gross profit profit margin Gross profit profit margin
EF ERZE E=7 E N E
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ARB TR % ARET T %
Product category EEER
A. Carded yamns A EmBY
Medium-count yarns X 4,315 16.5 6,511 18.3
Fine-count yarns B 42,415 17.2 73,391 19.3
High-count yarns BXH 7,759 15.4 20,922 16.8
Sub-total 1N 54,489 16.9 100,824 18.7
B. Combed yarns B. BB
Fine-count yarns i 31,411 15.1 30,683 23.0
Sub-total /NEF 31,411 15.1 30,683 23.0
Total st 85,900 16.2 131,507 18.9
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Grey fabric product
Set out below is an analysis of gross profit and gross profit margin of the
Group’s grey fabric product offered during the years:

T E M

TREINAEBRBERAFEMREZERE
2 EFREFERSH

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t+-BLERE

2012 2011

—E——%F —T——F
Gross Gross
Gross profit profit margin Gross profit profit margin
EX EF=E £ A EHME
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ARB TR % AREF T %
Fine-count fabrics # R 13,971 21.3 29,617 22.6
13,971 213 29,617 22.6

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the overall gross profit was
approximately RMB112.3 million, representing a decrease of approximately
35.6% from the year ended 31 December 2011 whereas the overall gross
profit margin in 2012 was approximately 14.9%, representing a decrease of
approximately 2.7 percentage points from approximately 17.6% in the
corresponding period in 2011. The decrease in overall gross profit margin
was mainly caused by decrease in gross profit margin of cotton yarn
products.

Cotton yarn products

The gross profit for the sales of cotton yarns for the year ended 31 December
2012 was approximately RMB85.9 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 34.7% from approximately RMB131.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2011. The gross profit margin of cotton yarns decreased
by approximately 2.7 percentage points to 16.2% for the year ended 31
December 2012 from approximately 18.9% for the corresponding period in
2011.

REBEE-ZZ——F+-_A=+—BHLEFE"
BELTHHAEARBE112,800,0007T © & #H
EoE-——F+ - A=+—BIEFEERD
#4356% M —_T— —_F2BEBEFNXAY
14.9%  BR_-_ZT——FRHAL17.6% NEL2.7
EELB BEETHNETHRETZEHARY
EmZEMNETRERE-

184 E W

HEZZT—ZF+-A=+—RHLFE 3
WHEZEMNBBEE-_TE——F+_A=+
— B IEFEH ARK131,500,0007T 7 2 49
34.7%E 4 AR ¥85,900,000T° EH E - T —
—HEF A=+ BHLEE BYPzEFX
BT ——FREEHIBIN NELH27EE »
2EZE16.2% °
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The decrease in gross profit margin of cotton yarn products was primarily
caused by (i) the rental payment of RMB24.0 million for the Yinhe Production
Plant being recorded in 31 December 2012; and (i) a relatively low utilisation
rate in such production plant due to substantial time and effort devoted in
calibration and trial run in first half of 2012. The Group entered into the
Acquisition to acquire the Leased Production Facilities on 7 February 2013.
On the financial aspect, the Acquisition will enable the Group to achieve
immediate production cost saving when compare to existing lease terms. If
the acquisition costs of the Leased Production Facilities were depreciated in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy, it is estimated the annual
depreciation and amortization charge would be RMB12 million. The cost of
operating the Leased Production Facilities following the Acquisition will be
lower as compared to the current annual rental payment of RMB24 million.
Hence, the gross profit margin is expected to improve.

Grey fabric products

The gross profit for the sales of grey fabrics for the year ended 31 December
2012 was approximately RMB14.0 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 52.8% from approximately RMB29.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2011.

The gross profit margin for the sales of grey fabrics for the year ended 31
December 2012 was approximately 21.3%, representing a slight decrease of
approximately 1.3 percentage points from approximately 22.6% for the year
ended 31 December 2011.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) considered that the declined in
demand for the Group’s grey fabric models was due to the increase in supply
of higher density grey fabric products by other manufacturers in market. With
automated weaving equipment, other manufacturers are able to introduce
more grey fabric products with warp-weft density over 100 yarns per inch in
the market. However, the Group is only able to produce grey fabric products
with warp-weft density below 100 yarns per inch. The competition from these
higher density products lead to the decrease in both demand and prices of
the Group’s grey fabric products.

Lint cotton trading

The gross profit and gross profit margin from lint cotton trading activities were
approximately RMB12.4 million and 7.9% respectively for the year ended 31
December 2012.

WYERZEFETHREIZTARNRTEE
MR —_ZE——F+_A=1+—HHEBZAR
24,000,000 7L & F 3 R()HREZZT —
ZHFLEFEFREBERE D EFAR KRR
REEREET BALZEEREZERE
HEBEEMB - ASER-_T—=F-A+t
BeluWBEEEUKERELEESRE 5
FE-EBEEBHEEGRIEL  WESEKEAR
NABURESHEEERN - MERBEAE
Bz BRRAEEERE 2 WK AT
RITE G FENEREBHEERRBAAR
#12,000,000T °c BB AT FEHESTHRARE
24,000,000 CAH L - RETHESEEHEL
BN 2 EITR AR - F It E F & 78 8

BB RF -

HmE m
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Other income comprises interest income, sale of scraps and other sundry
income.

Other income decreased by approximately 13.8% to approximately RMBS.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2012 from approximately RMB3.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2011. The decrease was mainly due
to the decrease in gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment.

Distribution costs comprise mainly freights and loading charges, salary and
social insurance contributions for sales personnel.

Distribution costs decreased by approximately 10.4% to approximately
RMB10.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2012 from approximately
RMB11.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2011. The decrease was
due to the decrease in sales volume of cotton yarn products.

Administrative expenses comprise mainly salary expenses, social insurance
contributions, professional fees, entertainment expenses, utilities charges and
other sundry items.

Administrative expenses decreased by approximately 1.2% to approximately
RMB25.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2012 from approximately
RMB25.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2011. The decrease was
primarily due to effective control on the administrative expenses.

Finance costs consist of interest on borrowings for purchase of lint cotton
and interest on guaranteed senior notes. Finance costs increased by
approximately 7.6 times to approximately RMB22.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2012 from approximately RMB3.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2011. The increase in finance cost was due to the increase of
bank loans and other borrowing which in aggregated amount from
approximately RMB199.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2011 to
approximately RMB260.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2012.
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Income tax expense

Income tax expenses decreased by approximately 55.0% to approximately
RMB17.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2012 from approximately
RMB38.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2011. The decrease was
mainly due to a decrease in the taxable income for the year ended 31
December 2012.

Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, the profit for the year ended 31 December 2012
decreased by approximately 59.7% to approximately RMB40.6 million from
approximately RMB100.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2011. Due
to combined effect of a decline in sales volume and gross profit margin of
carded cotton yarn products, the decline of production of grey fabric
products as well as the increase in finance costs as mentioned above, the net
profit margin decreased to approximately 5.4% for the year ended 31
December 2012 as compared to approximately 10.1% for the year ended 31
December 2011.

Working capital management

The following table sets forth selected operating efficiency ratios for the
Group:

P18 BB <

REE-_ZTE——F+_A=+—RHILFE"
FEeEMEYaBE—_ZE2——F+_-_A=1+—
B IEFE 4 ARE17,100,000 7T 5 4 £955.0%
Z# AR #38,000,0007T ° D T EHNE
E-_E-——HF+-A=+-BLFEZES
ot W AR A T R e

FREF

ERzZAIRt BE-_E——F+_-_A=+
—AEFEZENBEE =S ——F+=A
=+ —HIFE4H ARA100,600,000 5T ik
#159.7% = %3 A R # 40,600,000 7T M7 & i
WMYEMZHEEREMNETR -KHEMZ
EETHRIMEMMABEXNRNENELRE R
E¥E PNEE_ZEZ——_+-_A=+—8
FtEE @Eh8BE_T——F+_-_A=
+—BIEFEH101% TEEHS5.4% °

EFEEEEE

TR AREREERL S WL

¢

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=1t—HLEE

2012 2011
=F-=F —F——F
Trade receivables turnover (days)"” EWE ZERFTUAEBRH (B8O 96.0 715
Trade payables turnover (days)? ENESEFAEASR(AE)? 7.7 3.7
Inventory turnover (days)® FEREAHK(HE)Y 82.0 37.2
Notes: B &
1) Trade receivables turnover is calculated based on the average of the beginning and (1) BWESERBEASIRZETCFERBRER

ending balance of trade receivables for a given year, divided by revenue during the
given year and multiplied by 365 days.

() Trade payables turnover is calculated based on the average of the beginning and
ending balance of trade payables for a given year, divided by cost of sales during the
given year and multiplied by 365 days.

) Inventory turnover is calculated based on the average of the beginning and ending
balance of inventory, net of impairment, for a given year, divided by cost of sales
during the given year and multiplied by 365 days.

ZEWE SERGESH FHEREEFEANKE
BEUIGSEAE -

@ ENESEFRBEASRZECFEERBRE
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Average trade receivables turnover increased to 96 days for the year ended
31 December 2012 from 71.5 days for the year ended 31 December 2011.
The increase in trade receivables turnover rate was primarily due to the
increase in proportion of lint cotton trading activities in the current year in
which lint cotton customers generally request for a longer credit period.

Average trade payables turnover increased slightly to 7.7 days for the year
ended 31 December 2012 from 3.7 days for the year ended 31 December
2011. The average trade payable turnover remains in single digit as the
purchase of lint cotton from major suppliers, who generally required upfront
prepayment.

Average inventory turnover increased to 82.0 days for the year ended 31
December 2012 from 37.2 days for the year ended 31 December 2011. The
increase was primarily due to the increase in lint cotton inventories level at
year end, resulting from the increase in purchases to support the Group’s
production and trading needs in the near future.

Liquidity and capital resources

The following table sets forth the liquidity and capital adequacy ratios for the
years:

HEZZ—Z—F+ZA=+—HIEFE &
KWESEFRFHEEARBEEZE_Z——F+
A=+ BLHFEZ7TIS5HEINESA - &
WESERBEBLR EAETEE2HNASE
ERBESESATE LG MATE - &R
BEF—BRERBEEMNEER-

ME-T-——F+-A=+-ALFE &
HESERTHANARERE -2 ——%

T A=+ —BLEFEZITHEKEMETT
H-ARMBEREELINRENTEMHE
EERELT ALENESERFEHAE A
HNABBEMET -

HE-_Z——F+-_A=+—RBIEE &
BEYHREgaEE T ——F+ A=
+—HB 23728 MNE82.0H - BERAE ALK
EMESEHRN $EIFM%EM§H$E
EREHANEERES S BYHFERE
R EEMATE -

HBEERELER
TRHBIESEFEZRDESRERKRLL

=
For the year ended
31 December

BE+-RA=+—-HLEE

2012 2011
—g-=f -T——%
Gearing"” BREELRO 26.6% 22.9%
Debt-to-equity® BEESL RO 38.9% 31.7%
Current ratio MMENLL R 2.8 times {3 3.1 timesf
Notes: MaE -
(1) Calculated as the total debts for the year, divided by total assets for the year and (1) NERBEERFTFRNBREEFTRUI0%TE - &

multiplied by 100%. Debts are defined to include current and non-current borrowings.

) Calculated as the total debts for the year, divided by the equity for the year and
multiplied by 100%. Debts are defined to include current and non-current borrowings.
Equity is defined to include the minority interests.

BrEERERBRIERBER

@ AFRBEERFARERIAI00%H - AE
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The gearing ratio and the debt-to-equity ratio increased to 26.6% and 38.9%
respectively for the year ended 31 December 2012 from 22.9% and 31.7%
for the year ended 31 December 2011, respectively. The increased in the
gearing ratio and debt-to-equity ratio were principally due to the increase in
the borrowings.

The current ratio changed to 2.8 times for the year ended 31 December
2012.

Bz 2——F+-_A=+—HILEE &
REaBELEEREBBEERLESEEEC
E——F+ A=+ —HILEFEM2I%K
31.7% EFFE26.6% % 38.9% - EARAFEH KK
BEESE R AT EHRERTEMATE -

Bz Z2——F+-_A=+—RHILEE &
B R A28MF o

For the year ended
31 December

BE+t-A=+—-HLEE

2012 2011
—EF-=F —F—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT ARBTT
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating & & ZBES(FTH)

activities ZRE TR (215,355)
Net cash used in investing activities KEEHFA RS FE (99,985)
Net cash generated from financing activities gt & )& 8 & 4 2 18 & )5 %8 283,298

Cash and cash equivalents at R+ZA=+—HZHRE R
31 December BHEEEY 143,850

Net cash generated from operating activities for the year ended 31 December
2012 was approximately RMB207.8 million whereas net cash used in
operating activities for the year ended 31 December 2011 was approximately
RMB215.4 million. The increase in cash inflow from operating activities was
due to (i) decrease in trade receivables, prepayments, deposits and other
receivables; and (i) increase in trade payables.

Net cash used in investing activities for the year ended 31 December 2012
was RMB1.8 million mainly including a decrease in pledged bank deposits of
RMB92.4 million.

Net cash generated from financing activities for the year ended 31 December
2012 was RMB39.3 million, including mainly net proceed from other
borrowing approximately RMB93.3 million for financing purchase of
production facilities.

RBE-_ZT——F+-_A=Z=+—HLEEFE
RZEBEHELE RS FENAARYE
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Pledge of assets

Details of the assets pledged as at 31 December 2012 are set out in note 26
to the consolidated financial statements.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2012, the Group did not have any significant contingent
liability.

Foreign currency exposure

The business operations of the Group’s subsidiaries were conducted mainly
in the PRC with revenues and expenses of the Group’s subsidiaries
denominated in RMB. Some of the Group’s cash and bank deposits,
including proceeds from the Group’s initial public offering, were denominated
in Hong Kong dollars (HK$) or United States dollars (US$). Any significant
exchange rate fluctuations of Hong Kong dollars or United States dollars
against each entity’s respective functional currency may have a financial
impact to the Group.

As at 31 December 2012, the Directors considered the Group’s foreign
exchange risk to be insignificant. During the year, the Group did not use any
financial instruments for hedging purposes.

Employees

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had a workforce of approximately 2,626
employees (2011: 2,662). During the year ended 31 December 2012, staff
costs (including Directors’ remuneration in the form of salaries and other
allowances) was approximately RMB60.2 million (2011: RMB64.9 million)

The remuneration of the employees of the Group includes salaries, bonuses
and other fringe benefits. The Group has different rates of remuneration for
different employees to be determined based on their performance,
experience, position and other factors in compliance with the relevant PRC
laws and regulations.
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Use of Net Proceeds from Listing

The Group has received approximately HK$119.2 million net proceeds, after
deducting underwriting fee and other related expenses, from the listing of the
Company’s shares during 2011. These proceeds were applied during the
year ended 31 December 2012 in accordance with the proposed applications
set out in the section headed ‘‘Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the
prospectus of the Company dated 28 June 2011 (the ‘“‘Prospectus’), as

EHAERIBEFEN AR

RZZT——FHH AEEAAXQB ROV
TTEGSEHNGEHERREGHEBEERD
119,200,000 JT ) FT 15 SR IE F 58 - R 1B A HA
RIE——FRXAZTNRZARAREKE
ROABRERDIRE;E RAGSRERE] —
MAMEcEZERE ZREMGHRARBE

follows: T+ A=+ —HLEFERERWT:
Net proceeds (HK$ million)
FEREBEFH(BEEST)
Available Utilised Unutilised
o A 2E A KRENA
Expansion of cotton yarn BERBYEERE
production facilities
— Yongle Production Plant Phase |I — KBEEERE =
(as referred to in the Prospectus) (B E R AT a)
expansion BRI 66.6 — 66.6
Improvement of production efficiency BEARRERYEERE
and product quality by upgrading RALYESRERRERLE X
existing cotton yarn production
facilities 28.6 10.0 18.6
Maintaining a stable level of lint W EREENEBTEKE
cotton reserve 19.7 19.7 -
Expansion and diversification of ERIEMNERER
product range 4.3 — 4.3

The Group held the unutilised net proceeds in short-term deposits or time
deposits with authorised financial institutions in the PRC as at 31 December

2012.

RZZE——ZF+-A=+—B x&E@AEX
RS RBEFANCHFE RN TEHTRE
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Business Outlook and Strategies

The Group will continue to streamline its operation by focusing on the cotton
yarn business, particular on the combed yarn products. With the customers
demand have been shifted to high quality products, it expects this is the right
strategy for the Group as it can meet with domestic consumption trend.

The Group was informed by local government that the Jinghe New Town
where the Yongle Production Plant locates is undergoing town planning
process. As the management is unable to evaluate the influence on the
Yongle Production Plant’s expansion plan because of this town planning
process, the Group will postpone the construction work of the expansion plan
until the finalization of the said town planning process.

Operationally, with the completion of the Acquisition, the Directors expect the
Group can enhance the competitiveness immediately by increase in
proportion of Group’s combed cotton yarn product output in the long run.
Upon completion, we expect it can further enhance the economic benefit to
the Group as we will have full autonomy to utilize our production resources.
We believe the Yinhe Production Plant will help to enhance the Group’s
leadership in the industry in northwestern region in the PRC, increase our
market share with better product mix and lead the Group’s business to new
heights.
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AEBEREBFEINRYEBELHERBRR
WEM BEBHHEEKEL BEEFPZE
RERSERER BHHERELEAEAR
HEBEMAAEE 2 IEFERE

AEBEREZHBFBEN  KELERMELZ
BAHMBBEEETHTRE T(E- R E R
BREMERZATHRE TIERKELEER
ZERAEGRZTE Rt AREKLTE
BRFECERIR B2 LOWTHREL
EEERL -

BETH BERBERzZEK EFEH
AEBERAEENAESERRBYERNE
B WMANKBRAREBZHEF N - REK
B ARNAKERTE2REEINAELEESR
R A E - P RAARENLEN S
AEERE RULERBABEPRREFASE
B Em i EmTERLAL REE
WERMEAAEMEMSNE sIEAEEE
BEEB L

31



32

Golden Shield Holdings (Industrial) Limited
Annual Report 2012

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
B AR S

The board of directors of the Company (the “Directors”) (the “Board”) has the
pleasure in presenting the annual report of the Company and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of Group’s
principal activities during the year ended 31 December 2012.

Results and Appropriations

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2012 and the state of affairs of the Group at that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 52 to 112.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2012.
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Summary Financial Information BB R E
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
—ETNEFE —FEThE —_FT-FTF —_T——F ZE-C-F
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT AR®TR
Revenue W % 458,904 544,340 709,948 990,954 755,042
Gross profit E7 114,294 152,907 156,020 174,399 112,310
Profit before income tax B %54 BT & A 101,069 131,168 130,571 138,565 57,656
Profit attributable to owners &2 & A A
of the Company FE 1 3% 7 75,960 98,857 97,417 100,567 40,558
Basic earnings per share % E A 2 |
(RMB Cents) (AR®5) 10.08 13.12 12.93 11.95 4.31
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
ZTTNF ZTTNF ZT—TF ZT——F —B—=F
RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETIT ARBFT AREFT AREFTT AR®ETT
Non-current assets JERBEE 61,808 105,690 112,291 115,613 113,998
Current assets REBE 260,697 317,954 359,606 754,784 865,377
Current liabilities BB & 114,904 117,186 51,128 242 850 309,294
Net assets BEEFE 207,601 306,458 430,769 627,547 670,081
. . a3 [y=—
Major Customers and Suppliers FEREFPRHEER

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the aggregate sales attributable
to the Group'’s five largest customers accounted for 15.1% of the total sales
for the year and the sales attributable to the largest customer included therein
amounted to 3.3%. The aggregate purchases from the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for 38% of the total purchases for the year and
purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted to 8.9%.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders (which, to
the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any material beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest customers and suppliers.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Company
and the Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2012 are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2012, the Company’s reserves available for distribution to
Shareholders, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda, amounted to nil (2011: nil). However, the Company’s
share premium account, in the amount of approximately RMB16,410 may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Directors

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2012 and up to the date
of this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chen Binghui (Chairman) (“Mr. Chen”)

Mr. Chen Zhifeng

Mr. Wu Shoumin

Mr. Qiu Jianfa (“Mr. Qiu”) (Re-designated as executive Director from
non-executive Director on 25 March 2013)

Non-executive Director:

Mr. Lin Shuqging (Deceased on 4 March 2013)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Kwong Kwan Tong
Ms. Xue Fang
Ms. Tong Jinzhi (Appointed on 3 December 2012)
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Pursuant to bye-law 83(2) of the bye-laws of the Company, Ms. Tong Jinzhi
shall retire from office as Director and, being eligible, offer herself for
re-election at the forthcoming 2012 annual general meeting of the Company
(“AGMP).

In accordance with bye-laws 84(1) and (2) of the bye-laws of the Company,
Mr. Wu Shoumin and Mr. Kwong Kwan Tong shall retire from office as
Directors by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM.

At the forthcoming AGM, ordinary resolutions will be put forward to the
shareholders of the Company in relation to the proposed re-election of Mr.
Wu Shoumin as Director and Mr. Kwong Kwan Tong and Ms. Tong Jinzhi as
independent non-executive Directors.

Board of Directors and Senior Management

Biographical information of the Directors and senior management of the
Group are set out on pages 8 to 14 of this annual report.

Directors’ Service Agreements and Appointments

Except for Mr. Qiu Jianfa, who has entered into a service agreement with the
company for a term of three years from 25 March 2013, each of the executive
Directors has entered into a service agreement with the Company for a term
of three years from 14 July 2011.

Except for Ms. Tong Jinzhi, who has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a term of three years from 3 December 2012, each of the
independent non-executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of three years from 14 July 2011.

During the period when Mr. Qiu served as a non-executive Director namely,
he entered into an appointment letter with the Company for a term of three
years from 14 July 2011 and such letter was terminated by mutual consent
on 25 March 2013.

None of the Directors, including those retired or to be elected at the
forthcoming AGM, has a service agreement which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without the payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

SEER(EE)ERAA
F 3R 2012

\\\

E:

RIEARQBMEESIR)IE EHAL LA
BETEERS jﬁéﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁ%‘ﬁé$’&7
EEZE——FRREBAFAE(RREAEFK
&) LERET-

BEAQFMBFEMNREIE RTRELE
FBEEALEBEGERTEERE AL
WEBEENERERERAFAS FERET-

REERRBFREG L BRAXQFERRKRE
HEMRRERRTRALEREFTIBEE
FERERARLIRBUFNTEEZER

N
RER o

EEERGREEE

FEFEELNSREEENEEERIR A
FWRESE147 ©

EENRBHEREZMLE

B BB 3 0% 5 A (HL B2 K R B) BT A7 BR 7% 15 &%
“E-=ZF=ZA-THBRFRA=F)IN
BRTEETHRARBIZIRBHZE B =
T——Ft A tTMOBERFR/EM=F-

BRESAZT(HEARRT LRSS HE 8
TE-——HFE+-AZHBHABZ=ZF)N &
BRI EETHEARNR T LR W
BE-S——F+tAt+MBRFAH=F-

REBEEREFATEFTHR REEEXRQ

RIFIVEER B ——FtA+THBER
ARE=F MREERR_ZE—=F=A
“THARKETRETFIAKI -
BEANES(REERERERRBEFKE

£3 ““Wé%ﬁ%ﬁ$¢lﬁ$iﬁWﬁ
CEEBRERINNBR TR -—FAKLE
B IR TS 7 o

35



36

Golden Shield Holdings (Industrial) Limited
Annual Report 2012

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
o3 HE ()

Emolument Policy

A Remuneration Committee was set up for reviewing the Group’s emolument
policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and senior
management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market practices.

Remuneration of Directors and Five Individuals with
Highest Emoluments

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five individuals with highest
emoluments are set out in note 11 and note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Directors and the Company’s Chief Executive’s
Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

As at 31 December 2012, the interests or short position of the Directors or
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong (“SFO”) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or were required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or were required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) (the “Model Code”), to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Long positions in shares of the Company

B R

ARRERIUFMEESG EEZEAKE
B A BRI RE KA LB T S E P
B RAAKRENFHERERRASEZEE
EhEREEBOHMERE -

ESNRA VRS HMA L AN

BEENANBRSFMATHESOFBIH AL
A EMERWFEII 120

ESRAQDBEBITHRAERRKR
- HERODKEER ZES

RZE—=—F+=-A=+—H XRAEZ
3 E BT A BR AR R sk H (A 45 B X &=
(EERBEBEPENEBT SR EEH
([EHRHEED]) EXVER) Z &5 - 18- &%
MEREHFEFEBREFZFRBE KRG EXV
HETRESHBAME AR T KB 2
=IAE (BRIEREZSFLBERIZEBIK
REEERRAEHBEESER 2 ER)  RE
BERRAEIEGFEI52MF BB & IESFTR
EZERMZzERS AR IR EE ZFTE
# _E AR ([ _E 7348 B ) B 8% + Pk i 2
TABEBETEFRZINEETAD(ZEST
ADEFTHNEARARBMIM 2 ERRAR
m

RERGRGZIHFE

Approximate

Number of shares percentage of

Name of Director Capacity of the Company shareholding

EESERB g% ARBRRGHE RESAB D
(%)

Mr. Qiu Jianfa (“Mr. Qiu”) Interest of controlled corporation (Note) 527,464,000 56.0

mEEfkE ( [EB%E4] ) = A B A s (MY ET)

Mr. Chen Binghui (“Mr. Chen”) Interest of controlled corporation (Note) 527,464,000 56.0

RRELEE ([BREE] ) REHEEE S (A i)
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Note: These shares were owned by Tong Fa Limited (“Tong Fa”), which is owned by Mr. Qiu
and Mr. Chen as to 79% and 21% respectively. Mr. Qiu is the sole director of Tong Fa.
So far as the Directors are aware, Tong Fa, Mr. Qiu and Mr. Chen collectively are
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of 30% or more of the voting power at the
general meetings of the Company and are therefore regarded as controlling
shareholders of the Company under the Listing Rules.

SEER(EE)ERAA
F 3R 2012

M REROHBBRARAR(BEDES MBH
MEEERREED BB 7% M21% » B & 4
RBREZWE-—EZ-REEMMBE BAL
HREEFARMARTERERTEARRABRER
B E30% A ERFERE - MBEETHRIKES
RREZ B

Number of

Name of associated

shares of
the associated

Approximate
percentage of

Name of Director corporation Capacity corporation held shareholding
HEBEEREZ

ESEB HESEE BB 514 BB A RESANB D
(%)

Mr. Qiu Tong Fa Beneficial owner 79 79.0

o % A& mE EmEB A

Mr. Chen Tong Fa Beneficial owner 21 21.0

bR 58 A& g EmEA A

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the Directors nor  BR EXFIHEEN RZT——_F+=-A=

chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests which
they were taken or deemed to have under provisions of the SFO), or were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Substantial Shareholders’ interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares

As at 31 December 2012 as far as is known to any Director or chief executive
of the Company, the interests and short position of the substantial
shareholders (other than a Director or chief executive of the Company) in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (“SFO”), or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 336 of Part XV of the SFO were as follows:

ERRAKROREBER D 2’

BXHY

RZB-—ZF+ZA=+—H BERFEM
EERTETHAERA REFEEMNSE
SNERSRAEGRI(TEZRBEGRDDE
XVERSE2 R BIN B Z G AR A R R W E - =X
LB IR IR E 25 M B B R B XV AR 5 336 1R 78
HMARBFEZECMAZARE RN KA
RNz EEZRR(ARARAEEFHTETHRA
BERIN 2w FORBIAT

Long position in shares of the Company KAGRGZHE
Number of Approximate
shares of percentage of
Name of Shareholder Capacity the Company shareholding
ESER &% XARRHBHE RESANB D
(%)
Tong Fa Beneficial owner 527,464,000 56.0
mE EmEB A
Wealth Lake Investment Limited Beneficial owner (Note 1) 56,512,000 6.0
Wealth Lake Investment Limited BEBAARHET)
Mr. Cheung Yung Interest of controlled corporation (Note 1) 56,512,000 6.0
REBSEE RS EEER (Ha1)
Central Huijin Investment Ltd Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 527,464,000 56.0
PRESEEEREETAA REHEEER (WF2)
China Construction Bank Corporation Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 527,464,000 56.0
PRZRRITROBR LA REGEEER (Hat2)
Notes: Bt 5
1) These shares were owned by Wealth Lake Investment Limited, which is wholly owned (1) ZERMBKRBELEESREHEEHE ZWealth Lake

by Mr. Cheung Yung.

2) Central Huijin Investment Ltd and China Construction Bank Corporation are the
ultimate indirect holding company and indirect holding company respectively of
Chance Talent Management Limited which is the chargee of 527,464,000 shares
charged by Tong Fa as part of the consideration for issuance of senior secured notes
of an aggregate principal amount of HK$120 million as term loan facility by Chance
Talent Management Limited to the Company on 16 October 2012.

Investment Limited # A& -

@ FPRESKREARETARAKTRBERRITR
7 & B 2 @ 9 5l 7 Chance Talent Management
LimtedZ S EER AR KBEZER AR -
Chance Talent Management Limited /& & % Ff 1 &
2527,464,000M Ik 2 R WA ZER M T 1E
B E o B LA 3 1T 7N € 5E 42 58 5 120,000,000
BT ZBEAEMERE U ERChance Talent
Management Limited A =& — = F + A+ /XA [
RARREZ EHERRE -
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Final Dividend

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2012 (2011: nil) and there is no disclosure of the
registers of members accordingly.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

No Director had a material interest in, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 31 December
2012.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company did not grant any
rights to any Directors, chief executive of the Company or their respective
spouse or children under 18 to acquire beneficial interests by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company, and none of the
above persons have exercised the rights during the year. Further, none of the
Company, its holding company or any of the subsidiaries of the Company
was a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire the rights
to acquire beneficial interests by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, any other body corporate.

Connected Transactions

There were no connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which are required to
comply with any of the reporting, announcement or independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

Purchase, Sale and Redemption of the Company’s
Shares

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2012.
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Directors’ Interest in a Competing Business

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Directors were not aware of
any business or interest of the Directors or any substantial shareholder (as
defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company and their respective
associates that had competed or might compete with the business of the
Group and any other conflicts of interests which any such person had or
might have with the Group.

Particulars of secured bank borrowing of the Group as at 31 December 2012
are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.
Retirement Benefit Schemes

Particulars of the retirement benefit schemes of the Group are set out in note
5 to the consolidated financial statements.
Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-executive Directors
to be independent parties. The Company considers all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

Share Option Scheme

Up to 31 December 2012, the Company had not adopted any share option
scheme or granted any option.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the

knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share
capital was held by the public as at the date of this annual report.
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Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-laws
and the laws of Bermuda where the Company is incorporated, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Code on Corporate Governance Practices and
Corporate Governance Code

The Board considered that the Company had during the year ended 31
December 2012 complied with the code provisions set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices as stipulated in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules which was amended and renamed as Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report and came into effect on 1 April 2012.

The Group’s compliance with the code provisions is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report from page 42 to 49 of this annual report.

Auditor

Martin C.K. Pong & Company has acted as auditor of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2012.

Martin C.K. Pong & Company shall retire in the forthcoming AGM and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for reappointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Martin C.K. Pong & Company as auditor of the Company will
be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Mr. Chen Binghui
Executive Director and Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2013
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Code on Corporate Governance Practices and
Corporate Governance Code

On 1 April 2012, the Code on Corporate Governance Practices set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) (the
“Former CG Code”) was amended and renamed as Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “New CG Code”). The
Company has adopted the code provisions as stated in the New CG Code in
substitution for and to the exclusion of the Former CG Code with effect from
1 April 2012. The Company has, throughout the year ended 31 December
2012, complied with the code provisions contained in both the Former CG
Code and the New CG Code.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as the code of conduct governing Directors’ securities
transactions. The Company confirms that, having made specific enquiry of all
the Directors, each of them has complied with the required standard as set
out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2012.

Board of Directors

As at 31 December 2012, the Board comprises three executive Directors,
two non-executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors
as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Binghui (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Zhifeng

Mr. Wu Shoumin

Mr. Qiu Jianfa (Re-designated as executive Director on 25 March 2013)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lin Shuging (Deceased on 4 March 2013)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Kwong Kwan Tong

Ms. Xue Fang

Ms. Tong Jinzhi (Appointed on 3 December 2012)
Mr. Yang Guohao (Resigned on 3 December 2012)
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The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director having
sound industry knowledge, extensive corporate and strategic planning
experience and/or expertise relevant to the business of the Group. The
biographical details of the Directors and the relationship among the members
of the Board are set out in the “Biographical Information of Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 8 to 14 of this annual report.

The Board is responsible for the overall strategic development of the Group. It
also monitors the financial performance and internal control of the Group’s
business operations. Executive Directors are responsible for running the
Group and executing the strategies adopted by the Board. The Board
delegates day-to-day activities to the management with department heads
responsible for different aspects of the business. Management is required to
present an annual budget and any proposal for major investments and
changes in business strategies for the Board’s approval. The non-executive
Directors serve the relevant function of bringing independent judgment on the
development, performance and risk management of the Group through their
contributions in board meetings. They are also serving on Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee.

During the year, the Board complies at all times with the requirement for the
appointment of at least 3 independent non-executive Directors representing
more than one third of the Board, which is in compliance with Rule 3.10(1)
and Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules. At least one of them has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and the Company considers all the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. All Directors are also encouraged to
attend relevant training courses at the Company’s expense. All Directors are
required to provide the Company with his or her training record on an annual
basis.

EEGURESENME MEBEREFTHRA
SEMREEBYAEBRITENG L5
CEERKEBRELBE SBEMEMT-ES
TEEREMREEESXNEHBERNTER
EFESE4EFMEEE RS REEEREE
BREE -

EE2RAAAREZBRBRRER - H0E
BEASBEXRBEEZYBRENAGERE-
HTEZREREAEHELNTERTS MR
MR -EEERABTEDHEETEER
HAMAETEREXEB 2 AR I E - EEE
ARRFEFEALEBIERERNERH
R 2ERERE HEFSHAE - FFNTE
EEBRENEETEZ LZER XK
B3R RALRREIEFL B A2
BERBgE REN/BEZZBES FHEEE
RREZEEGZMKE

RER EESHRETEEELI=2BY
FHRTEENRE ABEEFIAHEN=
DZ LA LEmRAFE31001) % & F
BIAB(ZHRE - REZL —RHEBHEEZHE
XER BB AEBEMBERER - K
ARAERE LETRAUEIBGWRINGTRE L
FRTEESFAREBIMIEL 2R -
ARFRRRERBUIFATESTEEBE LA
Sier

EEZRJEeRBET ARATZBHEE
EX2HEBMBEIRE ERBARAAER -
EREZATFALARARHEERBZE
BlES -3

43



44

Golden Shield Holdings (Industrial) Limited
Annual Report 2012

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

1 38 10 o (81

The Board normally has four scheduled meetings a year at quarterly interval
and meets as and when required to discuss the overall business,
development strategy, operations and financial reporting of the Company.
The Directors can attend meetings in persons or through other means of
electronic communication in accordance with the Company’s bye-laws.
Notice of at least 14 days is given of a regular Board meeting to allow all
Directors an opportunity to attend. The following table shows the attendance
of individual Directors at the meetings held during the year:

Mr. Chen Binghui 4/4
Mr. Chen Zhifeng 4/4
Mr. Wu Shoumin 4/4
Mr. Qiu Jianfa 3/4
Mr. Lin Shuging 3/4
Mr. Kwong Kwan Tong 3/4
Ms. Xue Fang 3/4

Ms. Tong Jinzhi
(Appointed on 3 December 2012)
Mr. Yang Guohao 3/4
(Resigned on 3 December 2012)

Not Applicable

Board papers are circulated at least 3 days before the Board meetings to
enable the Directors to make informed decisions on matters to be raised at
the Board meetings.

In addition, the Company has maintained a procedure for the Directors to
seek independent professional advice, in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense in discharging their duties to the Company. Moreover,
the Company Secretary prepares minutes and keeps records of matters
discussed and decisions resolved at all Board meetings. The Company
Secretary also keeps the minutes, which are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

EXeREEFLHORME  BFERT—
R MW ARE 2 BEBER  BERRE

ERMBERRBETER EEARA LB
BARBAAUMAFZEME %Lﬂﬁﬁﬁ

%Eﬂ% ViGN jﬂ‘fﬁ:ﬁlﬁﬁé$ %H'JE—/J\
Mi'ﬁ%ﬁé%%ﬁ@ﬂ’%ﬁﬁ%Aﬁf

& e

G- FTRBIERNEFEN LGRS
R

R 3= 8 St A 4/4
PR I % A 4/4
RTFR%EAE 4/4
f 2 ik g 3/4
M E S 3/4
BIREESLE 3/4
Bt 3/4
FERALT(RZE—ZF T iE A
+-A=REZE)
BEREEE(RZTE—ZF 3/4

TZAZ=ZHEMT)

EEeNMHRESEERETARL =AM
EEEH WEEFERBRE
HZEE  ERAIERE -

o KRR L—ERF ZEFEAS
%ﬁ?*%@ﬁﬁ%$ﬁﬁZ%§%'%*%
VEEXER HAXAAXARAXN B AF
METRFEEFEEZ LARIFEUR
mﬁZ&m RESATHIRFEMLE -
REAMETRFEECLE YARERNES
EHABBAME EEAEERHEHRE -



SEER(EE)ERAA
F 3R 2012

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

1B 36 6 WOl ()

Appointment, Re-Election and Removal

Under the Code Provision A.4.1 of the Former Code and the New Code , all
the non-executive Directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject
to re-election. At present, each of the independent non-executive Directors
has been appointed for a specific term of three years.

Bye-law 83(2) of the Company’s bye-laws provides that the Directors shall
have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a
Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or, subject to authorisation
by the shareholders of the Company in general meeting, as an addition to the
existing Board but so that the number of Directors so appointed shall not
exceed any maximum number determined from time to time by the
shareholders in general meeting. Any Director so appointed by the board of
Directors shall hold office only until the first general meeting of the
shareholders after his/her appointment and be subject to re-election at that
meeting. Ms. Tong Jinzhi was appointed by the Board on 3 December 2012.
Therefore, pursuant to bye-Law 83(2) of the Company’s bye-laws, Ms. Tong
Jinzhi shall retire at the forthcoming 2012 annual general meeting of the
Company (“AGM”) and is eligible for re-election at such meeting.

According to the Company’s bye-laws, one-third of the Directors are required
to retire from office at each annual general meeting, provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once in every three
years. The Directors to retire every year shall be those appointed by the
Board during the year and those who have been longest in office since their
last re-election.

Each of Mr. Wu Shoumin and Mr. Kwong Kwan Tong shall retire from offices
as Directors at the forthcoming AGM in accordance with bye-laws 84(1) and (2)
of the bye-laws of the Company.

At the forthcoming, AGM, ordinary resolutions will be put forward to the
shareholders of the Company in relation to the proposed re-election of Mr.
Wu Shoumin as executive Director, Mr. Kwong Kwan Tong and Ms. Tong
Jinzhi as independent non-executive Directors.
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Nomination of Directors

The Company established a nomination committee (“Nomination Committee”)
in March 2012 with written terms of reference in compliance with the New CG
Code. The principal duties of the Nomination Committee are to identify
individuals suitably qualified to become members of the Board and make
recommendations to the Board on succession planning for the Directors. The
Nomination Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Ms. Xue Fang, Mr. Kwong Kwan Tong and Ms.Tong Jinzhi. Pursuant
to a resolution of the Board passed on 20 March 2012, Ms. Xue Fang has
been appointed as the chairwoman of the Nomination Committee.

A meeting was held by the Nomination Committee with all members attended
during the year ended 31 December 2012.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established its remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee”) in July 2011 and has formulated its written terms of reference.
The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee were revised
and adopted on 20 March 2012 in accordance with the New CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee comprises all the members of independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Ms. Tong Jinzhi (chairwoman of the
Remuneration Committee), Mr. Kwong Kwan Tong and Ms. Xue Fang. The
Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviewing and evaluating the
remuneration packages of the Directors and senior management and making
recommendations to the Board from time to time.

A meeting was held by the remuneration committee with all members
attended during the year ended 31 December 2012.
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Accountability and Audit

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2012.
The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements of the Company with a view to ensuring that such financial
statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
those relevant statutory and regulatory requirements and applicable
accounting standards are complied with. The Company believes in
conducting itself in ways that deliver maximum sustainable value to the
shareholders.

The auditors are responsible to form an independent opinion based on the
audit, on the financial statements prepared by the Directors and report the
opinion solely to the shareholders of the Company. The statement of the
external auditors of the Company about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor’'s Report” in this
annual report.

Auditor’s Remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the remuneration paid to the auditor,
Martin C.K. Pang to Company in respect of audit services amounted to
HK$1,300,000 and non-audit service assignment amounted to HK$238,000.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee in July 2011 and has
formulated its written terms of reference, which may from time to time be
modified, in accordance with the provisions set out in the Former CG Code.
The Former CG Code was amended and renamed the New CG Code which
came into effect on 1 April 2012. The written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee were revised and adopted on 20 March 2012 in accordance with
the New CG Code. The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Kwong Kwan Tong (chairman of the Audit
Committee), Ms. Tong Jinzhi and Ms. Xue Fang. The Audit Committee is
accountable to the Board and the principal duties of the Audit Committee
include the review and supervision of the Group’s financial reporting system
and internal control procedures, review of the Group’s financial information
and review of the relationship with the external auditor of the Company.
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The Audit Committee has reviewed with management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed auditing,
internal control and financial reporting matters, including the review of the
audited consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2012.

The following table shows the attendance of individual Directors at the
meetings held during the year:

Mr. Kwong Kwan Tong 2/2

Ms. Xue Fang 2/2

Ms. Tong Jinzhi Not Applicable
(Appointed on 3 December 2012)

Mr. Yang Guohao 2/2
(Resigned on 3 December 2012)

The Audit Committee reviews the interim and annual reports before
submission to the Board. The audit committee focuses not only on the impact
of the changes in accounting policies and practices but also on the
compliance with accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the legal
requirements in the review of the Company’s interim and annual reports.

Company Secretary

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Loo Koon Tung James. He
has been informed of the requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules
and their compliance with such requirement for the year ended 31 December
2012 will be set out in the corporate governance report in the 2012 annual
report of the Company

Investor Relations and Communication with
Shareholders

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining a clear, timely and
effective communication with the Shareholders and investors of the Company.
The Board also recognises that effective communication with its investors is
critical in establishing investor confidence and to attract new investors.
Therefore, the Company is committed to maintaining a high degree of
transparency to ensure the investors and shareholders of the Company
will receive accurate, clear, comprehensive and timely information of the
Group. The Company has established a range of communication channels
between itself and its shareholders, and investors. These include the
publication of annual and interim reports, notices, announcements and
circulars, the Company’s websites at www.goldenshield.com.cn and
www.goldenshield.com.hk and meetings with investors and analysts.
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Internal Control

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining an adequate and
effective internal control system to safeguard the Company’s assets against
unauthorised use of disposition, and to protect the interests of shareholders
of the Company. Senior management assumes the overall responsibility for
reviewing the adequacy and integrity of the Group’s internal control system
with the guidance of the executive Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Board has discussed and
reviewed the internal control system and the relevant proposal made by
senior management in order to ensure an adequate and effective system of
internal control.
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Martin C. K. Pong & Company

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
GOLDEN SHIELD HOLDINGS (INDUSTRIAL) LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Golden Shield
Holdings (Industrial) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) set out on pages 52 to 112, which comprise the consolidated
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2012, and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2012, and of the
Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Martin C.K. Pong & Company
Certified Public Accountants

16/F., Dah Sing Life Building,
99-105 Des Voeux Road Central,
Central,

Hong Kong

25 March 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 & & —

E——H#+-A=+—HBItEE

2012 2011
—E-C-F —T——F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 7 AR¥ET ARET T
Revenue I % 8 755,042 990,954
Cost of sales $HE P A (642,732) (816,555)
Gross profit EF 112,310 174,399
Other income H g A 8 3,090 3,585
Distribution costs 7§ P AR (9,971) (11,134)
Administrative expenses THAX (24,995) (25,304)
Finance costs Bh & B AN 9 (22,778) (2,981)
Profit before tax B B A A 10 57,656 138,565
Income tax expense FTig R X 13 (17,098) (37,998)
Profit for the year FERER 40,558 100,567
Other comprehensive income, Hit2mEKE
net of tax (BHNKBHE)
Exchange difference on translating BEFINERE
foreign operations e ZE5 (105) -
Total comprehensive income FELZEKRZHAE
for the year 40,453 100,567
Profit attributable to owners of N EEE ARG & F
the Company 40,558 100,567
Total comprehensive income attributable AN A B #E & A FE1G
to owners of the Company FHN =B 40,453 100,567
Earnings per share attributable AAREEREEAEN
to ordinary equity holders of ERER
the Company 15
— Basic and diluted (in RMB cents) —HEARBEE(ARESD) 4.31 11.95
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e B R LR R
Asat 31 December2012 A —ZE——F+—-HA=+—H
2012 2011
—E-=F —F——F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 7 AR®¥T T ARET T
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME  BENMEKRE 16 104,823 106,173
Prepaid land lease payments A & FIR 17 9,175 9,440
Deferred tax asset BEERIBEE 19 - -
113,998 115,613
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 20 147,250 141,575
Trade receivables FEUE 5 BR K 21 138,005 259,134
Prepayments, deposits and ERFIE ek
other receivables H th W sk IR 22 98,002 117,842
Pledged and restricted bank deposits BRI KR SIRITE R 23 93,056 92,383
Cash and cash equivalents HeMBREEEY 23 389,064 143,850
865,377 754,784
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables JERTE 5 R 24 19,977 7,293
Accruals and other payables JE & 5K I8 e E b FE 5 5B 25 20,562 20,453
Income tax payable JE ST A 1S HR 1,866 9,907
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFESRITER 26 163,700 199,000
Other borrowings HEMiEE 27 97,178 -
Provisions B 28 6,011 6,197
309,294 242,850
Net current assets REBEEFEE 556,083 511,934
Net assets EEFE 670,081 627,547
Equity attributable to owners of KATEEANELER
the Company
Share capital A% A 29 77,801 77,801
Reserves & 30 592,280 549,746
Total equity EEEE 670,081 627,547

Approved and authorised for issued by the board of directors on 25 March

2013
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Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAEBAERL
Foreign
Share-based Statutory currency
Share Share Other  compensation surplus  translation Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
UG RER EE Shis
RA& R EE Rt ZHBMEE BHER EiGE REBA @zt
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
izt AR¥TT ARBFT AR®TR ARETT ARETE ARETT ARETR AREFn
(Note 30) (Note 30) (Note 30)
(F#5£30) (F#5£30) (F#3£30)
At 1 January 2011 RZZT——4F
—-A—H - - 51,474 335 25,636 - 363,324 430,769
Total comprehensive income FE2ARZAS
for the year
Profit for the year FERF - - - - - - 100,567 100,567
Appropriation to statutory AEEEE
surplus reserve BHEE - - - - 11,307 - (11,307) -
Arising on the Reorganisation EEESE 29 82 - 82) - - - - -
Placing and public offer of RERAMEE
new shares Fi 29 15,561 93,361 - - - - - 108,922
Shares issue expenses BITRDEZ - (14,799) - - - - - (14,793)
Capitalisation issue BEAEES 29 62,158 (62,158) - - - - - -
Share-based payment transactions  LAMR 19 & 8932 5 30(b) - - - 2,082 - - - 2,082
At 31 December 2011 R-T——F
+-A=+-8 77,801 16,410 51,392 2,417 36,943 - 442,584 627,547
Total comprehensive income FERENE
for the year
Profit for the year FEEF - - - - - - 40,558 40,558
Other comprehensive income FREMZERE
for the year:
Exchange differences in BEEMNEBZ
translating EXZR
foreign operations — — — — — (105) = (105)
- - - - - (105) 40,558 40,453
Appropriation to statutory AEEEE
surplus reserve REAGEE - - - - 5,129 - (5,129) -
Share-based payment transactions AR 17 X 15 815 5 30(0) - - - 2,081 - - - 2,081
At 31 December 2012 R-T-—-F
+-A=+-8H 77,801 16,410 51,392 4,498 42,072 (105) 478,013 670,081




SEER(EX)ERAH

F 3k 2012
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
ar A Bl AN &
For the yearended 31 December 2012 i ZE — T ——F + A=+ —HILFE
2012 2011
—E——F —_F—
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR T AR T T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RERETHNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B 4 A& 138,565
Adjustments for: AT & IFKLFHE
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, LEWE  BE K
plant and equipment HEHER () (859)
Depreciation and amortisation & K 5 9,826
Share-based payment expense ARt 2 89 B 2 2,082
Finance costs B & AR 2,981
Interest income B A (995)
151,600
Increase in inventories FEEM (116,637)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables W B 5 BR ZOR A (3 ) (129,929)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, ENFRE -Ee Kk
deposits and other receivables H i U SRIE R A (38 n) (82,271)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables BB SEBRFE MR L) (2,159)
Increase/(decrease) in accruals JE 5T 3R I8 I E At JE 5 30IB
and other payables i CRd) (1,189)
Decrease in provisions BER L (187)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations ~ #& & EBEL,(FTA) MR & (180,772)
Income taxes paid EANNTEEY (34,583)
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities ~ 48 & R 8hE 4,/ (FF ) B
e FE (215,355)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REREFHNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment B E ¥ % - = K& E (3,655)
Deposit payments for purchase of property, #LEEE ¥ - BE K&
plant and equipment REZ e (6,000)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant ~ HEWE  FE &
and equipment BB FTS IR 1,058
Decrease/(increase) in pledged AR IR 1717 3K
bank deposits w4 00) (92,383)
Increase in restricted bank deposits PR R 1777 K38 00 —
Interest received B UF B 995
Net cash used in investing activities KEESFARS TR (99,985)
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2012 2011
—E-—C"F —E——F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B & ARET T ARBT T
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING REMETHNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest paid 2 F B (2,981)
Placing and public offering of new shares B2 & & A & H % 108,922
Share issue expenses BITRMAX (14,793)
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITERATIEEIR 199,000
Repayment of bank borrowings BERTER (6,850)
Proceed from other borrowings HEMEE ZMEHRE -
Transaction costs paid for other borrowings i & b & & % {1 2 22 Z K -
Net cash from financing activities RERESSMNIRESFE 283,298
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE)INCASH R&RBE&ZEYWEm
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS O ) =& (32,042)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, FINBRERESZEY
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 175,892

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net 4MNEE R & 8) 2 F &

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
AT END OF YEAR

FRANBRERREEEY

23

143,850




SEER(EX)ERAA
F 3R 2012

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A o B 25 A A

Fortheyearended 31 December2012 2 —E——F+ _A=+—HIFE

Corporate Information and Group Reorganisation 1. AFREZREEBEE=A

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company ARG EEREFMR I AEREER
with limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of ANE  HBROREBBMAELSABRA
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the BB RFT]) Ee "R Al Z s =
registered office and the principal place of business of the Company BENTEZEME 2t RERIA A
are disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section of the annual BE—ETHE -

report.

During the year, the principal activity of the Company was investment FR ANRAIZETBELAERERIR

holding and the principal activities of its subsidiaries are described in EfB AR 2 EBEBEH NIRRT
note 18 to the financial statements. F18°

On 21 June 2011, pursuant to a group reorganisation (the RZE——FNAZ+—HB REAEZE
“Reorganisation”) to rationalise the structure of the Company and its BEARNARGLD R T ERAER]D
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) in the preparation FimBEEARRRENEB QR (KTHE
for the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of the Stock ([ REB)REmRETZEBEAH(E
Exchange (the “Main Board”), the Company acquired the entire issued ) ARBWBESRERAER A A
share capital of Jade Goal Holdings Limited (“Jade Goal”) in ((BE])z22H2BTREA REAN
consideration of and exchange for the allotment and issue of 999,900 fic 3% & 3% 17 KR &) B A A 999,900 f% & A%
shares of Hong Kong dollar (‘HK$”) 0.1 each in the share capital of the EEOABT([Ex]) 2 ARFIES R
Company credited as fully paid and thereafter the Company became miEAERHB HEARKQARKAEEWNE A
the holding company of its subsidiaries. Details of the Reorganisation RIZERAR - BEHFBHRARFTR
are set out in the prospectus issued by the Company dated 28 June —E——FE XA+t N BB ZHBEE
2011. 2o

The shares of the Company commenced listing on the Main Board on KA AR—_E——F+tA+MWHEH
14 July 2011. IREFER LT -

Basis of Presentation and Preparation 2. 2 REHEE

As a result of the Reorganisation which involved companies under
common control, the Group is regarded and accounted for as a
continuing group. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with the principles of merger
accounting as set out in Accounting Guideline 5 Merger Accounting for
Common Control Combinations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") as if the Reorganisation
had been completed as of 1 January 2011. On this basis, the Company
has been treated as the holding company of its subsidiaries for the
financial years presented rather than from the date of acquisition of the
subsidiaries.

HREASRARZESH ZRR AEE
BERBREARIBFHELEEH-
At A MBBRRIDRIEEF L S A
REBBZEFEIBRHAAZFE
A ETEERRAAHETRANE
B.oEMEHAER =T ——F—HA—H
TR e BRI LR RRAFRHRRE
WP 2 % B BR A (M 3F KRB BT /&8 & A
ZBEH)EMBRR 2 ERAR -
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2.

Basis of Presentation and Preparation (Continueq)

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (‘HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the HKICPA and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. In addition,
these financial statements include applicable disclosure required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Adoption of New and Revised HKFRSs

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first time
for the current year’s financial statements.

HKFRS 1 (Amendments)

2.

EIREREE 5

AMBHRVIZBERGAMAGRM
ZEEVHBRELN(EEMBREE
AN (BEMAEREMBREER  FB
et EN(HFESAEND KRB EE
BEBEMERAMBR -t
AU HRR T EFE X ATEF ETARR
(TEMRAD) REB R REG 2885
BARE - AU BRERIRELKA LR -

THBBRETIANARBTAREDZ
- BREBREAN ABEEEDRAERE
REOIZTITR -

BRANFTE] RAEMER] BB I

REZZWHRR B RIRBA A
TRETEABMBHRSER -

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting

Standards — Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed Dates for First-time Adpoters

FAMBHREEER

CHEN) BB ARME ZBIE A

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

BRI BREVBREENEIREANRANE B FEHREER — BREBRE

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:

Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets

BRI HREERETHR
CHEN)

HKAS 12 (Amendments)
A HE S EAPEACTIES

The adoption of the revised HKFRSs has had no significant financial
effect on these financial statements.

BRI BEVBRELMNETREH TR KE - BEHEE

Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes — Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets
BRI EBGHERNE12WEH — BLEHE - WEIEHEE

R T BB M5 S 2R AR 5
BRI BERUBTE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 & &

— =

— =

4. Issued but not yet Effective HKFRSs

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

TET_HA=+—HILFE

[u]

78 17 1

i
&

BARERZEBY

PaS

S (1
_REUH.

i

(==

AEELERAUHBHRRRATIIER
B H R AR HET REERT BB

2% -

Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after

RUTH#HZ#&

M e FEMBELER
HKFRS 1 (Amendments) Government Loans 1 January 2013
ERMBMEENE1RUETAR) BFER —ET-=%—HA—H

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

FRMBHMESERETR(BTA)

HKFRS 9
BB RE LR B

HKFRS 7 and

HKFRS 9 (Amendments)

TRV B MEERETR N
BBV BREEREIH
(BT A)

HKFRS 10
BAEMBEHRELRE 105

HKFRS 11
BAMBREEAEIR

HKFRS 12
BERMBME L1295

N

HKFRS 13
BAMBRE L L3R

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 (Amendments)

BB B RS ERZE 1055
EEBREELE 115 R
BB B ®REELE 1258
(fE&T7A)

Disclosure — Offsetting Financial Assets and

Financial Liabilities

BE-BRESREELSRAR

Financial Instruments
SRIT A

Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9
and Transition Disclosures

FRMEMEENFORAREIERE AR

B R

Consolidated Financial Statements

NN T

Joint Arrangements
HRE =

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
BHERAEMEB ZER

Fair Value Measurement

AFEHE
Transition Guidance

B IR FR

1 January 2013

1 January 2015
—ZET-h¥—-A—H

1 January 2015

—ZE-hH¥—-A—H

1 January 2013
—E—=%—H—H

1 January 2013
—ET—=%—HA—H

1 January 2013
—E—=%—H—H

1 January 2013
—E—=%—H—H

1 January 2013

—F—=%—H—H
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4. lIssued but not yet Effective HKFRSs (Continued) 4. CEMEERERZE B
% EE A (@)
Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after
RUTHEHBRzZE
Rz FEHBER
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and Investment Entities 1 January 2014
HKAS 27 (2011) (Amendments)
BRI B wEERE 1055 REER —Z—-NF¥—-HF—H
BB BREERE 125 R
BEEGHERE27HR
(=T ——F)(BFA)
Amendments to HKFRSs issued  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle 1 January 2013
in June 2012
RZE—_FXNABMZEF] BAVBRSEEN_ZTHhE_ZT——F —E-=%—-—H—H
I ms 8 A B 4
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Presentation of Items of Other 1 July 2012
Comprehensive Income
EBEHENE IR (LTS HerHEWSER 225 —T-——#+H—H
HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits 1 January 2013
ERE G ERE 195 EERAN —E-—=%—H—H
(=% ——%)
HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2013
BEEGHERE27H 18 < B T —E-=%—H—H
(ZZ——%)
HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 1 January 2013
EHR G LR E 285 REERAIRAEREZRE —E-—=%—H—H
(=% ——%)
HKAS 32 (Amendments) Presentation — Offsetting Financial Assets 1 January 2014
and Financial Liabilities
BEBEGEUFERRFUEFTAR) 27 - EBHsREEReRAE —ZE-MmME-HF—H
HK (IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of 1 January 2013
a Surface Mine
TR (EARVBRERELZES) BERXBSEERRZHEKK —E—=%—H—H
—2BE205%
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of AEERFTHZETR REETES
these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application but it is not MIEMELARAERFZEE
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a BEEENEBZSHII REETREEY
detailed review has been completed whether these new and revised BHEENSTHELEEERTBKMN
HKFRSs would have any significant impact on its results of operations MNEERERFE 2FMHER 281 12

and financial position. HEFE BT E AT -
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5. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as at and for the
year ended 31 December each year. The financial statements of
the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as
the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All
intra-group balances, transactions, unrealised gains and losses
resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends are
eliminated on consolidation in full.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is attributed to
the non-controlling interest even if it results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (i) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the
fair value of any investment retained and (jii) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate.

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies
the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

RAMBBRREBEALQE REK
BRARBET-_A=+t—8BK
BEZRALFEZHBERR - WE
RBEZHBRERBRELARAER
ZHEHHERE  ARA Mg
FHBR - MB AR Z EE T h B
ER(AAEEESIENEZR)
BEaAR THESGEEAKREE
FIEHEEIEZH SEARAH
ZHEB&ESR 5 HEBEARARFE
MeXoMELEZARBHR YRR R
BEALRBEANRGEAKREEE
B

B MBS AL 4 - BB A R R
2 IR ) B I R R 2 o

MEAREAEED 2 ES (L E
REERGE) NEEER S AR -

WAEBAEHWE LR Z 2
EAHEBROIZMNBELRAZE
ERERE)RAE  ((MEAIEE
% 4 25 2 BR T A RGP R 25 R AT
R BHEREZE RERIE K
REZATE (\FREEMERE
2 {E K i) 18 = P E A B b E
EZBBRER  AEBERRE
thEERERNEREL LD EH

SREESEXIREEN(WEE) -

MBARRALRB EELBEEE
BEMBEREERK  UREEE
EBhEREERE -
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5, EXRETHERE»

5. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

When an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than deferred
tax asset, inventories and financial assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the profit
or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the profit or
loss in the period in which it arises.

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

MEBRBRERBE HARE
EETFEREANR(TEERLE
MREE FERZREE) A
EEAEENAROEE - BEN
ThEeRREELARSELE
e EREERXFERBEEX
AUARGERE)E - LHER
BEMBT BRFEBHEELEE
EERARELLBYRNEMEE
HEEBRNRSRA  ELBER
T AKRCDeEREEMBNRS
EEBUMERT -

BMEBEENREERTNEERE
Al EE R R - R ERE
B AFFRKBRESRERTRBR
CEEHEENREMSIMEL
BENRE R KA A LR KRR
ERE-BREBARELMEER
SRANZEFRBEEENE &K
B B SHE B R Rk o

REZHYPHERTOEHRILSD
B A BF &R BB R I A R RO OB (B
BEEIBEEXAEES KR DE
TTRHE - M FEEM LB R - BY
ERHFTKROER - BEAREE
BEMAKRE BN B RK
By LRI E E PR R AR E B
BHAEE BRENHESENAS
REBEREBEFELTERRXEE
HREBERETNREEREN
BREMMITE H) o BENRE
ERERNEEEBEGARSR-

BRAEZIREN WE BELARE
BN R &I B RAE AR E B
BRI WX BEEREERE
KABREBABLREEEEHR
H B E A& e & (E R K it B i
EREREEKA -
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BERSFTHREME )

5. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 5.
(Continued)

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life, at the following rates
per annum:

Buildings P g==d

Plant and machinery B K23
Furniture, fixture and office equipment
Motor vehicles E

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in
the profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sale proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

B RERRAERE

ME - BELREHEE FARERER
EENRAK - fImgBRERA
—RRELPHEEEERPINRG -
ERRBBEERNBERLT 2@
RMFELENHAXEEEREES
BREREE - WABOIME K
BEERBEATHESR AAKESE
KEBLAOERRATEERF
HmENEEL SELARITE -

MENEREFE UREEEY
¥ BEEREBEB OB ER
FHUTIEF I E MR
AEHFIHEE:
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Y% - BB RREREB KD
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AEEEMO ZEIEREDE
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5. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 5, EREBHBEHMEw

(Continued)

Construction in progress represents buildings under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction
during the period of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases net of any incentives received from the lessor
are charged to the profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets of the Group within the scope of HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are
classified as loans and receivables. The Group determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value plus directly attributable transaction costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

ERIREEEZNET  BREAR
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5. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 5, EXEHERE»)

(Continued)
Subsequent measurement ‘REBTHE
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with B R W GRIE T 5 I & 50 E B
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active MEREBEABREXRATEESE
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently ZHEMTESREE - RUF =2
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate % EHEEHBREKBERRNEZ
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is & 2 8 88 A AN R (R 1B B R T
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on B oo B G AR AR ST M A AT Uk BE B aE
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of FmBRsTE  WEEBERERA
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation KD 2 EBBRNAR -
is included in other income in the profit or loss. The loss arising ERFEBHTABRERE 2 Hi
from impairment is recognised in the profit or loss. WA o BEEE 2 BIERIERRE
7,

Derecognition of financial assets BiEmRemEE
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset PREE(RNERA eREEH
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised FFosk—HELeREEHR
when (i) the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have FES)ETHIER T BIEER .
expired; or (i) the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash (BEZEEXRDRRERENEIE
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the fE R Sk (i) AN & B B 8 R A AN R
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party BEZEENRERENEN K2
under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group RBIER |2 mE =7 A
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the EfzgxNEewRanes  B&
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained BERER F@AEECEEZE
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has ErRRNIoRER KB R - ko)A
transferred control of the asset. SEVTEBEEIRBZEENR

REDEBRKREHR - D EEZE
7 4% 42

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows WEASEEHZEAEERR
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it RenSOENHTIERELZ
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and HAGERERBEENMA K
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither [ Bz 1% 5] 3R K2 AR BB A 6 [ o fis 3
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of EEZIREZEENBAINS
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is [ B By 1% 18] B - JR MRS GR AL B B RV
recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in i AZEERASEBEES A
the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated ZEEMNEEBR -HERBRIT
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are AEENKERDEEE - CHE
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that EERBBAGURBREEBR
the Group has retained. BHEFNMBEERELEFE -
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over MAEBREEREEN T NESE
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original 28 NRZEENRERELAE
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of SEUTEZFEXNNEEREM

consideration that the Group could be required to repay. EHREEFE -
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5, EXRETHERE»

5. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an
incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment
exists for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant.
If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate.
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5, ERETHEMEw)

5. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the profit or
loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or
has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting
the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the
recovery is credited to the profit or loss.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities of the Group within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as financial liabilities at amortised costs. The Group
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, financial liabilities at amortised costs are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
method amortisation process.
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5, EXRETHERE»

5. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the profit or loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the profit or
loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active
markets is determined by reference to quoted market prices or
dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price
for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.
For financial instruments where there is no active market, the fair
value is determined using appropriate valuation techniques. Such
techniques include using recent arm’s length market transactions;
reference to the current market value of another instrument which
is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis; and
option pricing models.
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5. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 5, EXSHHEHRE @

(Continued)

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable FEEKANER]EHE FEZ®
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in EKE AR o BRI INE LG5
the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises ToOmAES G REA GKARSE
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of BHERMN BEELAIREZLAZ
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling REM RS o A] B IR R E R B G
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and EBREETKLEERMBHRZ
disposal. FE A 5T B AN 1 5E ©
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, RiRERERERME B LR
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand SEEMREFERS  FHEXK
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are readily NE—MREBABR=EA KNI H
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an BErfERALRAENBBEREM
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of W R 2 BE B E RS
generally within three months when acquired, less bank SERBKRE  BRERKERNRE
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral TEY AAEEBRSEEMNMAR
part of the Group’s cash management. B e
For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and R BRABEMS BekBEe
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including LEYEREFER S MRITER
term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not BETEBHT R RS AR S B
restricted as to use. MEFERIZREINEE -
A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or WMEBTSESHMmMEREREEE
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is SHETEF METZEERAED
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to BES RAREIRMK - WEER] iy
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be HEHEANESE ARREER
made of the amount of the obligation. & o
When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised EMBEEETBEAN AERZE
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting HeERBHARTZAETMER
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to RASTUREHR 2 RETER -
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value By [ 078 0 i 22 A 2 BR 3R 3R B 38 N
amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance TABEBR BB -

cost in the profit or loss.
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5. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 5, EREBHBEHMEw

(Continued)

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity as appropriate.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

— when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss; and

— in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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5. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utilised, except:

— when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

— in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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5. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(i) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold; and

(i) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Share-based payments

Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”). The cost of equity-
settled transactions with an employee is measured by reference
to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair
value is determined by an external valuer using discounted cash
flows method, further details of which are given in note 30 to the
financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which
the performance and/or service conditions are fulfiled. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at
the end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the
extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the profit or loss for a
period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.
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5. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 5, EXSHHEHRE @

(Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued) AR BERE 2R #E)
No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, HREREEBERAZRKRER 2B
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional i TR ETMES  EETF
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as MG IEFEBIEHMATE RS H
vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting B7BRAREELTZRIBRIN - HRZ
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or BERALEERSmME  REmMEAH
service conditions are satisfied. o B B RS R IS IR B A E K

N3 T 5 K IE 5 B R AT R R
BERE[/CHB -

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a WA EE SR 2K EREE

minimum, an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been YKLV EBERERZ RAIERE
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, BIRRER BRI EAE
an expense is recognised for any modification that increases the Eofbsh MIZEFE BHE T
total fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise MEBEFERURDAER MR
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of ZHNTEREN S EE S
modification. REMF - AIERZSEEER

FsZ o

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it MR AL E B TS ERAAA
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet ERETHBHEE  TREKRER
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This ZREHEYT HENEER - B8
includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the EEAESEBE S EEZFGEENRNZ
control of either the Group or the employee are not met. IEF B IR RAEER 2 E M 4EF -
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, AN EERTHREBRKBETHEHZ
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it is RE YRFEBEHEEABRE
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they By BIEEEZ BE R EE - —
were a modification of the original award, as described in the WNAETER ATl - B FEME IR A R I2E) 2
previous paragraph. BE -FMARAGEERZHEB 2T

HERASZTARRE -

Retirement benefits RIKtE T

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident AREBRIEBEARSMEAESEE
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the lAE>RBEERYTRMERZ
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its BEIM AT EXRENE2([RTE
employees. Contributions are made based on a percentage of eEED) - -FHEBRFREEFEZ
the employees’ salaries and are charged to the profit or loss as EEEDL WRERESETE 2
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF HANRENFERBZRER IR - 08
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately ez EERAER B E
from those of the Group in an independently administered fund. SH BHBUYEEBESEA N
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees SEZEFTHREFTABRES T

when contributed into the MPF Scheme. giE 2HERES -
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5, EXRETHERE»

5. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Retirement benefits (Continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. This subsidiary is required to contribute certain
percentage of its payroll costs to the central pension scheme.
The contributions are charged to the profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.

Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with borrowing funds.

The Company’s functional currency is HK$ and the financial
statements are presented in RMB which is the presentation
currency as RMB is the functional currency for most of the
consolidated operations. Each entity in the Group determines its
own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities
in the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 Bl E — L ——F + A =+—HILFE

5. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 5, EXSHHEHREw

(Continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are HETHBINMBARZEE®IT
currencies other than the RMB. As at the end of the reporting FEARBE RBFEHKR ZEEE
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated CJEEHBEBENRBREHRER
into the presentation currency of the Company at the exchange IEXRBEABRKRARZEREE
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their profit MZEEB2EaKRAIEZFRZ
or loss are translated into RMB at the weighted average MMEFELERBE 5 A REK o
exchange rates for the year.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other AHELAZERZEREME2E
comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign currency W R WRINEMEFEEFR R
translation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the o REEINRERE - ARG
component of other comprehensive income relating that TENNBEHKZHMB2EmKAILD
particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss. RERRER -
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the MEABEEeREeaRMs  BINWE
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into RMB at ARRAZHReRERBESREAH
the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. ZBRAERBE A ARE BING
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which BRAAFRNEEELAZERERE
arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the weighted BRERNZMEFLTHERHBE B A

average exchange rates for the year. R o
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5. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person:

)

(i)

(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

)

(i)

(i)

(V)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

5.
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5. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

(b)  (Continued)

(v the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

Significant Accounting Judgments and
Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in
the future.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

(@ Impairment on receivables
The provision policy for doubtful debts of the Group is based on
an ongoing evaluation of the collectability and ageing analysis of
the outstanding receivables and on management’s judgment. In
assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables, various
factors including creditworthiness and the past collection history
of the customer or debtors concerned will be taken into account.
If the financial conditions of any customers or other debtors of
the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their
ability to make payments, additional impairment may be required.

5.

6.
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6. Significant Accounting Judgments and
Estimates (continued)

(b)

Provision for obsolete inventories

Management reviews the ageing analysis of inventories of the
Group at the end of each reporting period, and makes provision
for obsolete and slow moving items identified that are no longer
suitable for sale. Management estimates the net realisable value
for such inventories based primarily on the latest selling prices
and prevailing market conditions.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Non-financial assets of the Group are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. Impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs
to sell and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less
costs to sell is based on available data from binding sales
transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of
the asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash flows from
the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Estimate useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In determining the useful lives of property, plant and equipment,
the Group has to consider various factors, such as expected
usage of the asset, expected physical wear and tear, the care
and maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the
use of the asset. The estimation of the useful life of the asset is
made based on the experience of the Group with similar assets
that are used in a similar way. Depreciation charge is revised if
the estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and
equipment are different from the previous estimation. Useful lives
are reviewed, at the end of each reporting period, based on
changes in circumstances.

6.
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7.

Operating Segment Information

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information reported
to the senior management of the Company for their decisions about
resources allocation to the Group’s business components and for their
review of the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information reported to the senior
management are determined following the Group’s major operations.

The Group’s operating business are organised and managed separately
according to the nature of products, which each segment representing
a strategic business segment that offers different products in the PRC
market. The Company’s senior management considered that the
Group’s reportable and operating segments are as follows:

—  Textile products segment — production and sale of cotton yarn
and grey fabric segment; and

— Trading materials segment — trading of raw materials for textile
products segment.

7.
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7.

Operating Segment Information (continued) 7. BESITER »
The following is an analysis of the Group’s reportable segments. T ARNEBHREDILZDHT °
Textile Products Trading materials Total
HEBE R EEMH 5t
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
ZB--f —Z——f ZB--f —T——4 ZEB-ZFf —T-——-F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT AR%TR ARETT ARETR ARETR
Segment revenue 2 BWE
Sales to external customers MR FE ZHE 597,045 828,333 157,997 162,621 755,042 990,954
Segment results DEEE 90,596 151,617 4,162 9,643 94,758 161,260
Reconciliation: R
Interest income FMEWA 1,469 995
Other income and gains HA A R &= 900 1,845
Interest expenses Memx (14,273) —
Corporate and other PEREM
unallocated expenses RO X (25,198) (25,535)
Profit before tax B 754 A1 71 57,656 138,565
Segment assets PHEE 332,042 327,470 62,557 294,576 394,599 622,046
Reconciliation: R
Corporate and other rEREAM
unallocated assets KPWREE 584,776 248,351
Total assets BWEE 979,375 870,397
Other segment information: Hth 5 #HEH :
Depreciation and TE R
amortisation 9,950 9,826 - - 9,950 9,826
Additions to non-current EREEEEM
assets 8,369 3,655 - - 8,369 3,655

There were no inter-segment sales during the year (2011: Nil).

ERLES MEE (B ——F ) -
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7.

Operating Segment Information (Continued) 7. EENIER @)
Geographical information th 2 & £}
The Company is an investment holding company and the principal ARABAE—REEERAR > MASE
place of the Group’s operation is in the PRC. For the purpose of BENTFTEMEBMNATERE- - B EE B
segment information disclosures under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments, B R E LR FEQREFBLHB2IHED
the Group regards the PRC as its country of domicile. All the Group'’s HERMS  AEER TR A HFAER
revenue and non-current assets are principally attributable to the PRC, R e AEBFRAERRRIERBEETE
being the single geographical region. RKEFE(RE—E) -
Information about a major customer FEEFZEHN
Revenue of approximately RMB25,120,000 (2011: RMB45,639,000) AR ¥25120,000c(ZE——F : A
was derived from the textile product segment to the Group’s largest R # 45,639,000 7T) K Y 7 2K B 2N & B &
customer. No single customers contributed 10% or more to the REEFFBGHBERD  —_ 2 — =
Group’s revenue for both 2012 and 2011. EZE——FHEBE - FTFAAEESF
BR10% 3k A By U s e
Revenue and Other Income 8. WmKkHEMUA
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net W25 R BN R & B HY 2 % BOERFERE
invoiced value of goods sold, and trade discounts and net of value- HEROBERE WEAHNKRE ST
added tax during the year. KRR IGER o
An analysis of revenue and other income and gains is as follows: W Rk EMBPAHSTET
2012 2011
—2-=F —F——F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARBTT
Revenue W g
Sale of goods HEE®m 755,042 990,954
Other income and gains H A A Rz
Bank interest income HATH E WA 1,469 995
Gain on sale of scrap materials o EE R U 721 745
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE  BE X
plant and equipment BE g - 859
Others Hi 900 986
3,090 3,585
758,132 994,539
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9. Finance Costs 9. BMERAK

2012 2011
—F-=F —F——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Interest on bank borrowings wholly repayable BERAFANRHEE
within five years B SR 1T 18 3R B 18,647 2,981
Interest on other borrowings (note 27) EEEFE (HiEa7) 4,131 -
22,778 2,981

10. Profit before Tax

10.

BRBE A & A

AEERBANENE MR (GEA) T3

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

RIH :

2012 2011
—E—-—C—F —ET——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA 642,732 816,555
Depreciation of property, plant ME BELERETE
and equipment 9,685 9,562
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TEAT 1 3th FH & SR IB 5
payments 265 264
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEWE BE X
plant and equipment REMEER () 34 (859)
Auditors’ remuneration % B RN B & 1,057 1,133
Employee benefit expense (including EERABEX (BEEEMS)
directors’ remuneration (note 11)): GESRE
— Wages, salaries and allowances —I& s k=2 43,624 48,421
— Share-based payment expense —URHDAEER 2T HRAEX 2,081 2,082
— Pension schemes contributions — BRIk & sHEIMH 8,229 7,922
— Staff welfare and other benefits —BIRAMNKEMEF 6,247 6,438
60,181 64,863
Foreign exchange loss, net SNE B 18 5 88 218 840
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11. Directors’ Remuneration
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing
Rules and section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as

follows:

Salaries, allowances

Share-based

1. EFEN 2

REBEETHRIREFERRED FE16115
REZAFEEEHEWT :

Pension scheme

Fees and benefits in kind payment expense contributions Total

ne ¥e 2ERENER LU 349 7 M B XX BASHEMR szt
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
“%--f %% Z%--f “%——% ZB--f “T——%F ZB--fF “T——F ZB--F “T——F
RMB'000 RVMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTT ARETR ARBTT ARETR

ARBTE ARMTRT ARETIL ARBTR ARETR

Executive Directors: HITES:
Mr. Chen Binghui BRRBLAE - - 886 475 2,081 2,082 12 13 2,979 2,570
Mr. Wu Shoumin RTFREE - - 301 182 - - 4 11 305 193
Mr. Chen Zhifeng REELE - - 294 172 - - 9 10 303 182
- — 1,481 829 2,081 2,082 25 34 3,587 2,945
Non-executive Directors:  FHTES:
Mr. Quu Jianfa RELE - - 58 64 - - - 11 58 75
Mr. Lin Shuging W LE - - 66 56 - - 11 - 77 56
- - 124 120 - - 11 ih 135 131
Independent non-executive 3§ 3 JE 1T
Directors: EE:
Mr. Yang Guohao* BRI S L - - 75 41 - - - - 75 41
Mr. Kwong Kwan Tong BREELE - - 195 97 - - - - 195 97
Ms. Xue Fang BErxut - - 81 41 - - - - 81 41
Ms. Tong Jinzhi** BHALL - - 6 — - - - - 6 -
- - 357 179 - - - - 357 179
- - 1,962 1,128 2,081 2,082 36 45 4,079 3,255

* Resigned during the year ended 31 December 2012.

ok

Appointed during the year ended 31 December 2012.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to
waive any remuneration during the years ended 31 December 2012
and 2011.

During the year, no emolument was paid to the Directors as
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss to office (2011: Nil).

* HE-_ZT——F+-_A=1+—HItFE#
£

x> HE-_T——F+-A=+—HBHLEFEZ
£

BE-T—FR=-F——F+ZAH=
T—HLEFE BRECAESRLENE
HFEBRRTRAME 228

FA ANEEBRERE SN E MM
& (ERMARE B H R INAAE B B
ZRESHBEE(CTE——F ®) -
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12. Five Highest Paid Employees

The five highest paid employees during the year included four (2011:
four) Directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 11
above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining one (2011: one) non-
director, highest paid employees for the year are as follows:

12. EE2ESEHEMA L

FALERSFMALTEEDNE(ZF
——F HREF FFEME FBH
REXHEN - BT —R(ZF——F:
—RIAHEFEZERHFMALTRAF
EzMEHBHT:

Year ended 31 December

HE+-—_A=+—HLEE

2012 2011

—E——fF ZE——fF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARBETF T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ & « 28 R EWEF 463 299
Performance bonus RIRTEAT - 243
Pension scheme contributions BRETEIER 11 7
474 549

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

MEN R TIEBNIEESRSHMA
TEHAEBT :

Number of individuals

BEAH
2012 2011
—F-=F —FT——F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 % 2 1,000,0007% 7T 1 1

During the year, no emolument was paid to the five highest paid
individuals as inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss to office (2011: Nil).

FRA - AEEHBEALEZESHFMAL
XA ERME - R INAARE B R0
AREER 2R ABMBREE(ZT—
—F )
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13. Income Tax Expense 13. FIEHIAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2011:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year. The PRC subsidiaries are subject to the PRC Enterprise
Income Tax (“EIT”) at 25% (2011: 25%). Taxes on profits assessable
elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the
jurisdiction in which the Group operates.

AEERBEFRNREDE LN G ER
i A2 16.5% (ZF — —F : 16.5%) Y
MEFRBBHNERERE FEMBEA
Al AR25% (=& — — & : 25%) S
BEEMESH(EEMSH] - Hibib
ErERBHEMNZHEDRIEASE B KL
EEBHEA AR ZRITHETHE -

2012 2011
—E-C—F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBTT

Current tax: BUHATE 18 -
— Hong Kong — &% -
— The PRC — 37,690
37,690
Deferred tax (note 19) RIERIE (M 3E19) 308
Total tax charges for the year FEMEXHERE 37,998

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Company
did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the
year (2011: Nil).

HRARARRNFEFAL EEREBELEM
FERR 0 a8 A - BUE I AR E B SR
Be(CT——F:8)-

85



86

Golden Shield Holdings (Industrial) Limited
Annual Report 2012

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A A B 25 A T RE (A0

Fortheyearended 31 December2012 2 —E——F+ —_A=+—HIFE

13. Income Tax Expense (Continuea)

14.

15.

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory tax rates for the PRC in which the majority of the
Company’s subsidiaries are domiciled to the income tax expense at the
effective tax rates is as follows:

13. FIEHE X @

BADRABHHMBRARFEZH
A TE B SR AT B R B B AT R A /O BT 43
MEYHERERREAENMER
RIS BRIAT -

2012 2011

—E——F —ET——F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETT

Profit before tax R B2 A1 o A 138,565

Tax at the EIT rate BEEFMSREAFEZHE 34,641
Income not subject to tax BAEMB 2 WA (21)
Expenses not deductible for tax ARz X 2,558
Others HA 820
Income tax expense g8 37,998

Dividend

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31 December
2012, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of the
reporting period (2011: Nil).

Earnings Per Share

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2012 is based on the profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the Company and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 941,900,000 in issue during the year.

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2011 is based on the profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the Company, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 841,774,740 that would have been in
issue throughout the year as if the Company had been the holding
company of the Group since the beginning of the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
presented as the Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in
issue during 2012 and 2011.

14.

15.

=

ARBBE-_ZT——F+-A=+—8”
LHFETESNREZRMTRE 8K
SHRURTEEZZREEANERE(Z
T——F )

BERER

HE-_Z——F+-A=+—HLF
EzBREABIDIBEFALA A
TERBAEABGEAREANEET
941,900,000 f% & i@ A% 2 A0 % F 9 E 5T
%:o

HE-_Z——#F+-_A=+—BItFE
ZERERABNTIRBEFARRD R LR
B 5B A FE 4G & B %2841,774,7400% FE
BRERNEIT 2 LB 2 T &G
E HMOARTBEBFVNERAEE 2=

/NI

HRAEBR T —FR_T——4F
WERBTHIEERTEAR  HLE
HEAZ2WERERNBAELAE -
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For the yearended 31 December 2012 i ZE — T ——F + A=+ —HILFE
16. Property, Plant and Equipment 16. 1% -BERZME
Furniture,
fixtures and
Plant and office Motor  Construction
Buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
B EE
RBAZE
BF HBERES B4 AE HREIR Fob
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTR ARETT ARETR ARE®TR ARETn
Cost: B
At 1 January 2011 RZE——F—F—H 70,237 67,931 514 1,885 60 140,627
Additions NE - 2,800 36 - 819 3,655
Disposals & - (559) - - — (559)
Transfers i 60 - - - (60) -
At 31 December 2011 WZZ——F+-f=+—H 70,297 70,172 550 1,885 819 143,723
Additions NE 85 8,126 - - 158 8,369
Disposals & - (260) - - - (260)
Transfers [ 977 - - - 977 -
At31December2012 WZZE——HF+-[F=+—H 71,359 78,038 550 1,885 - 151,832
Accumulated ZENE
depreciation
At 1 January 2011 W-Z——F—H—H 7,528 20,160 238 422 - 28,348
Provided for the year FERE 2,717 6,606 63 176 - 9,562
Written back & B
on disposals - (360) - - — (360)
At 31 December 2011 RZZ——F+-f=+—H 10,245 26,406 301 598 - 37,550
Provided for the year FEEE 2,745 6,717 62 161 - 9,685
Written back & BB
on disposals - (226) - - — (226)
At 31 December 2012 R-E——F+-A=+—H 12,990 32,897 363 759 - 47,009
Net carrying amounts BRI B (&
At 31 December 2012 R-E—-F+-f=+—H 58,369 45,141 187 1,126 - 104,823
At 31 December 2011 RZZ——F+-f=+—H 60,052 43,766 249 1,287 819 106,173
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16.

1

Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 16. 1% - MEKRHE =)
At 31 December 2012, certain of the Group’s buildings with a net RZE——F+-_A=+—H x&£H
carrying amount of approximately RMB1,631,000 (2011: BEEmFELOASAR®E1631,000T(ZF
RMB1,830,000) have no building certificates. ——F: AR %1,830,0007T) B & T #&
FUEEEMBES -
At 31 December 2012, certain of the Group’s buildings with a net R—_E——F+-_HA=+—H &%
carrying amount of approximately RMB51,406,000 (2011: ETHREBEFELH A ARES1,406,000 7T
RMB58,700,000) were pledged to secure general banking facilities (ZE——%F : AR M¥58,700,0007T) 2 &
granted to the Group (note 26). FEEBEARNEEER —RBTHE
Z ER(FIFE26) -
At 31 December 2011, certain of the Group’s plant and machinery with RZE——F+-_A=+—H ' K&&
a net carrying amount of approximately RMB32,738,000 were also BREFEL A AR 32,738,000 2 &
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group. EhEECEBIEAREBEER —RIE
TERE 2 &R
Prepaid Land Lease Payments 17. A L EFE
2012 2011
—E—-—C—F —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARETT
Net carrying amount BREFE
Land outside Hong Kong BRBEIN L 9,440

The Group’s prepaid land lease payments represent the payments for
land use rights in the PRC under medium term leases.

At 31 December 2012, the Group’s land use rights with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB7,179,000 (2011: RMB4,639,000) was
pledged to secure the bank borrowings granted to the Group (note 26).

AEBMBEMN T wHEFBEBERESD
I E RN B BT R
1H o

RZE——F+=ZA=+—H A&E
REFELNAARKET7179,000T (==
—— 4 AR #4,639,0007T) H) 1t {F
FAEEEMPEARNEBERRBITERZ
IR (FI5E26) ©
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18. Subsidiaries

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2012 are as follows:

Nominal value

18. {8 2 &

R-B-——F+_HA=+—BZHBER
AIERMT

Place of of issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary share/ equity
registration and registered attributable to
Company name operations capital the Company Principal activities
ERITERE
SEM R AL ﬁ¢ﬁﬁ/ AT LR AE
RE BB A&k &t it & A< Elagd FTEEK
Direct Indirect
B S
Jade Goal British Virgin Islands US$200 100% — Investment holding
("BVI")
=R EBEXES 2003 7T "B R

(S 1 %s::3-0))

Hong Kong Golden Hong Kong HK$1
Shield Limited

EESBAERAT BB 187

Golden Shield Textile The PRC Us$21,012,000*

(Jing Yang) Co., Ltd
(“Golden Shield JY ")

SEGHCERE) BR AR A 21,012,000 7T
(& EEB]

Weinan Hua Fu Technology The PRC Nil

Co., Ltd* (“Weinan Huafu")

BEEENRARAR HE s
(DEmZE=D

Weinan Huafu was established during the year ended 31 December 2012.

> Golden Shield JY’s registered capital was increased from US$7,370,000 to
US$21,012,000 during the year ended 31 December 2012,

100% Investment holding

REER

100% Production and sale of cotton
yarn and grey fabric and
trading of raw materials
for textile products

HEREEBY AT
LA I B B 71 8EE n [R MR

100% Not yet commenced business

EENGEC-E

BEEEREE T ——-F+=-A=+—
BIEFERMKT -

SEEBZBEURARBE-_T—=F1+
ZA=+—HIEFEANH7,370,000% T 1
HNZE21,012,0003 T °
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The movement in deferred tax asset in relation to provision of social

19. Deferred Tax Asset 190. IEIERKHIBEE

FRNELTERBERESBERTHENE

insurance contribution fund during the year is as follow: EFRIBEENEZEE N T :

2012 2011

—E—_—F —_EF——
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARET T
At 1 January wn—HA—H 308

Charged to the profit or loss BFERNz2E WS R

during the year (Note 13) (fF7E13) (308)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H -

Pursuant to the PRC EIT Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on
dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprise established in the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between the PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the
Group, the applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The Group is therefore liable
for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
established in the PRC in respect of earnings generated from 1 January
2008.

At 31 December 2012, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings
that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
it is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in
the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary differences
associated with investments in the PRC subsidiaries for which deferred
tax liabilities have not been recognised approximately of
RMB20,001,000 at 31 December 2012 (2011: RMB17,692,000).

RIERBESEMERE - RFABIK W
INERELEMINBRKEESTRRE
BIEI0%BWFENR - kB EB =T E
NF—A—HBHRER WEEANR-ZZ
+tFF+ A=+ —HEHEF - WP H
HAONREEEMNREEREE AR
BIELH AR ERAREMENRE - 5t
AEBEME  BAMREAE5%H10% - A
I AEEEEERRTRKLINEZSE
MEBARR-ZEZENF—A—BEREHLE
BB A T IR AR BB TEI0RL ©

R-—ZZE——F+-_A=+—8 T&EH®
REBRPBEKLZHEBRRENZ
AEHBMMAMELE 2 BNHRERIELT
HE - ARAESERAE ZSHBAA
RARBERNKRATEDIKREBAF -
R—ZTE——f€+-_A=+—H" ¥k
HEFEMBAAEESENER =
HFHAEEHEEENABAOAAR
#20,001,0007c(ZF ——F: AR
17,692,0007T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 & &= — =& —

20. Inventories

TET_HA=+—HILFE

20. 78

2012 2011
—E—_F —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T T
Raw materials R Rk 93,544 50,708
Work in progress R 311 1,361
Finished goods 2K G 773 2,756
Goods held for re-sale BIEEEE M 52,622 86,750
147,250 141,575

21. Trade Receivables 21. EIRE R
2012 2011
—F-=F = e
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T T
Trade receivables FEWE 5 ER 138,005 259,134

The Group’s sales to its customers are mainly made on credit. The

credit term is generally 90 days and up
customers. The Group seeks to maintai

to 180 days for major
n strict control over its

outstanding receivables and overdue balances are reviewed regularly
by senior management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that

the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk. Trade

receivables are non-interest bearing.

AEEREEFELHNEEETENEE
FAET - EEH -—MRROX MEE
BEP &K% RB180K o REB R IEMIFERE
ZHEREERUFRARBBESR S
RERETEEMENREEREKRE
KB R o BN ARIE R R A S E®
BRESEFEZHRZTILEPAR
BEERBZETREEYTEE - BK
EHRKB/REE -
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21. Trade Receivables (continued) 21. EWE Z RN (&)

An aged analysis of the trade receivables of the Group as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

REREHRRREZOHAENEAEE
R E SRR BRI DT T

2012 2011

—F-=F —F——F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AREF T

Within 3 months =@AR 135,405 237,045
4-6 months mENEA 2,600 22,089
138,005 259,134

4 S5 I8 3 {60 71 o 24 L 0 1 0 2 AL B9
B 55 B R A AR DA AT

The ageing analysis of trade receivables of the Group that are not
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:

2012 2011

—E——F —E——F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBF T

Neither past due nor impaired AEHE SRR E 138,005 259,134

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large HMERZ AT AHEOERFIET &
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history BB RE  ZERPIOHEERT
of default. 8% o



CEER(EE)ERAA
F 3R 2012

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fo B T 5 AR W Rk ()

Fortheyearended 31 December2012 2 —E——F+ _A=+—HIFE

22. Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables

2. ENRE -BREREMER

MIE
2012 2011
—B—=F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ART T ARBT T
Prepayments to suppliers TEA f FE 7 5K IE 67,823 96,207
Other prepayments H o T8 5RE 151 148
Deposits Z& 20,037 18,038
Other receivables H fth fE U R IE 2,353 2,642
Other tax recoverable H fh AT U 2] § 1B 7,638 907
98,002 117,842

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial
assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which

there was no recent history of default.

EHNSREER
FEWRIAE R

b EEYEBHRCME - FFA LA
AT HA 3 48 34 R AT 8% K

23. Pledged and Restricted Bank Deposits and 23. ERARE FE;@J SR 17 17 5K A
Cash and Cash Equivalents ERERBEESEY
2012 2011
—E-——F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Cash and bank balances REe RIBITTEES 482,120 236,233
Pledged bank deposits for bank RITIE R 2 B EPRITER
borrowings (note 26) (Fff 5E26) - (92,383)
Restricted bank deposits (note (c)) SR SR TR (W3 «) (93,056) -
Cash and cash equivalents B RESEEY 389,064 143,850
(@) At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances @ RMEHKR NEBEUAREBEF
of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to BEZReERBITEHRBEARE

RMB388,760,000 (2011: RMB141,755,000). RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies and the remittance of funds out
of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the

PRC government.

388,760,000 (= E——F: AR
#5141,755,0007T) > A R ¥ % 5
RMEBRAHME M+ EEH

B2 ARPEBRRERZIER

] T AR R o
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23. Pledged Bank Deposits and Cash and Cash
Equivalents (Continueq)

(b)  Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Pledged and restricted bank deposits which
denominated in HK$ and the bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

(c)  According to the terms of guaranteed senior secured notes
issued during the year, the borrowing which are deposited into a
designated bank are restricted as to use for specific purposes.
Further details are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.

24. Trade Payables

An ageing analysis of the trade payables of the Group as at the end of
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

23. EEMBITERUARRER

B&

(b)

SEEBY

BITREBBETRBITERA X
HEZFBANEME -BERRZR
BlERITB T ERRRBITERTF
MREHT EERCHEREER
FHRIERTT ©

REBEFRABTZERELAERR
R 2GR FRIETERITZHEK
ERREERE - FAEHERY
R M E27 -

24. BNEZ RN

RBERRBRBEZEAHAENRTEEE
NESERROEHESTAOT

2012 2011

—E-CZfF —E——%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBFT

Within 3 months =EAR 19,977 7,293

The trade payables are non-interest bearing and normally settled on 90
days terms.

BNESEARRE R —RNIOKXE

B e
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25. Accruals and Other Payables 25. Bt RIE R H M B FRIE
2012 2011
—E—_F —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARBET T
Accruals and other payables FEET R IE I E b JE T FRIB 14,698 11,751
Due to shareholders FE S AR R 5K IE 4,584 5,837
Due to a director BN —REEHIE - 1,287
Social insurance contribution payables & {5 #+ & R k& {1t 3% 1,280 1,578
20,562 20,453
The amounts due to shareholders mainly represented the listing ENREREFEERREREAEE I
expenses paid on behalf of the Group by a shareholder. The amounts ZLEmHAE ENBRER—BESHIE
due to shareholders and a director are non-interest bearing and AR B R EET - EARE 2 HIBLE
unsecured. The amount due to shareholders has no fixed terms of BEEXH MEN—REZFTZRER
repayment and the amount due to a director was fully settled during RERNZHEE -
the year.
26. Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowings 26. sFERITER
2012 2011
—g-—f —F——%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
Secured bank loans repayable: EiEAEFRITEN
Within one year —FR 163,700 171,000
Not repayable within one year but contain ~ FER —F NEE - BaE
a repayment on demand clause BEREEIER - 28,000
163,700 199,000
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26. Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowings (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

The Group’s bank loans are secured by the pledge of:

(i) Certain of the Group’s prepaid land lease payments, which had an
aggregate carrying value at the end of the reporting period of
approximately RMB7,179,000 (2011: RMB4,639,000);

(ii) Certain of the Group’s buildings, plant and machinery, which had an
aggregate carrying value at the end of the reporting period of
approximately RMB51,406,000 (2011: RMB91,438,000); and

(iii) Certain of land and buildings and machinery of a related company of
the Group, Shaanxi Golden Shield Textile Co., Ltd (“Shaanxi Golden
Shield”).

In addition, certain common directors of the Company and Shaanxi Golden
Shield and a director of the Company have guaranteed the Group’s bank loans
as at the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had also pledged bank deposits
approximately RMB92,382,000 to a bank to secure the bank loans of
RMB86,000,000 which was fully repaid during the year ended 31 December
2012.

Fixed rate bank loans of RMB80,000,000 (2011: RMB161,000,000) are
interest-bearing at 7.98% to 8.53% (2011: 7.82% to 7.98%) per annum. Other
non-fixed rate bank loans of RMB83,700,000 (2011: RMB38,000,000) are
interest-bearing at 7.20% to 8.53% (2011: 7.32%) per annum. The weighted
average effective interest rates on other non-fixed rate bank loans are 7.20% to
8.53% (2011: 7.32%) per annum.

26.

STERITER @)

REBEZRITERATINEEFEER :

[0} REERBEHREMBEOAA
R¥7179,000L(Z T ——F: A
R #4,639,0007T) W& F A4 £
AERE:

(ii) AEERBKEHREMBEOAA
R #51,406,000C(ZF ——F : A
R #91,438,0007T) M % F12F » &
BR#eE &

(iy ARE-HEEARRESEHE
ERARA(RASEDHE T it
RIBF R -

o KRR RRASEETHREER
ARB-—BEFRHRERARKDERAS
B RITER

R=ZF——F+=ZA=+—80 X&EE
B4 A R #92,382,0007T 2 R 1T 17 &K
FT—ER17 - R A R %86,000,0007T 2
BITERZEF  ZRTEREREE=
E——&F+-_A=Z=+—BULFE2HE

o

B

Bl

E B R 1T B % A R #:80,000,0007T ( =
T — — 4 AR ¥161,000,0007T ) & &
M ER798FEQEIE(-F — —F:782F%F
7TBE)F B HMIETBRITERA
R #83700000L(ZFE——F: AR
38,000,0007T ) ¥Z & F| £7.20%8.53E (=
T——F:732E):E c HtIEE BRT
BZmMEFHERMNE AT F7.2058.53
B(ZZ——F:732F) -
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27. Other Borrowings

27. Hiifg &

2012 2011
—E——fF —F——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T

At 1 January Hn—A—H

Issue of the guaranteed senior secured notes BITERELAGEHER
(the “Notes”) ZR(EED

Transaction costs for the issue of the Notes BOIERZRZHEA

Interest expenses (Note 9)
Exchange re-alignment

PE 5 E T B

A B R (FIE9)

At 31 December

R+—A=+—H

@)

On 16 October 2012, the Company issued the Notes totaling
HK$120,000,000 (equivalent to RMB97,529,000) to an
independent third party (the “Investor”) with a maturity of one
year from the date of issue. The maturity date of the Notes is
extensible for further one year by mutual consent of both parties
with revised coupon rate at 18.50%. The Notes are denominated
and settled in HK$ and bear the coupon interest at 15.50% per
annum payable semi-annually in arrears. The effective interest
rate on the Notes is 20.99% per annum.

The original principal terms of the Notes are described below:
(i) The Notes are secured by pledge of:
(1) entire equity interests in the Company held by the
parent company of the Company, Tong Fa Limited
(“Tong Fa”);

(2)  entire equity interests in Tong Fa held by its
shareholders; and

(8) entire equity interests in Shaanxi Pucheng Yinhe
Textile Co., Ltd (the “Proposed Target”), a limited
company established in the PRC, if the Group
successfully acquires the Proposed Target.

(i)  Two directors of the Company have guaranteed the Notes.

RZE—Z—F+A+"8 A2d
M—Z2BIE=F([KEEH]) BT
4 #£120,000,0008 T (HER AR
#97,529,0007T) < 2 - BEEITH
A —F - ZHEZHHAT
CEFRETNERE—F  MEBE]
2 B E B18.50% o Z iR LA JT Ef
BEREE BXBETF1550%
FEFELIN - BEBECEBRNEAESF
20.99% °

ERZFETEHRRET
) BEATIERM:

) ARARBRABEAR
AR([BEDFEZA
NAEIFTBE R AL

@ HBEBEBRRMEEZE
EGIE-R N 3N

@ A KE KD W AERRT
SEWRA A B A R B
RE(—HRFBEKL
ZERAA) (2=
B REZERZMH
BRI

iy AREMBEEERZEIRE-
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27. Other Borrowings (Continued)

(i)

The proceeds from the issue of the Notes (the “Proceed”)
are restricted to be used (1) for the payment of the
transaction costs of HK$1,800,000 (equivalents to
RMB1,463,000), representing 1.5% of HK$120,000,000,
charged by the Investor and any other transaction costs
for the issue of the Notes (the “Transaction costs”); and (2)
for the acquisition of the Proposed Target (the “Proposed
Acquisition”).

Due to change in the plan of the Proposed Acquisition, on 8
March 2013, a supplemental deed was signed and the original
principal terms of the Notes as mentioned in above (b)(i)(3) and (b)
(iii) are revised as follows:

(i)

Other than the payment of the Transaction costs as
mentioned in (b)(iii) above, the Proceeds can only be used
for the acquisition of certain land and buildings, production
and ancillary facilities for the production of combed cotton
yarn which are currently leased by the Group (the “Leased
Production Facilities”) from the Proposed Target (the “Asset
Acquisition”) by a subsidiary of the Company, Weinan
Huafu.

The Notes are also secured by the pledge of entire equity
interests in Weinan Huafu instead of the entire equity
interests in the Proposed Target if the Asset Acquisition is
duly completed.

The following major covenants in relation to the Notes are
imposed by the Investor to the Company:

M

(i)

amount outstanding under the Notes bear to the market
value of pledged Company’ share shall be maintained at
least at 1:1.5 but not lower than 1:1;

total assets of the Group bear to the net assets of the
Group shall not be more than 2:1;

the net assets of the Group shall not be less than
RMB550,000,000; and

the net worth of Weinan Huafu shall not be less than
RMB120,000,000 upon the completion of the Asset
Acquisition.

(©

iy BOTEBRMABRBE(MERK
HDERBRNZMNEEE
I B 2 32 5 Bk 751,800,000 74
7t (18 & W A R 1,463,000
JC )+ B1120,000,0007% JT 2
15% ' UWRBEBETEE 2
FRHEMRZEANTRS K
K RQUWEBEZBEZE(RE
mEEE]) -

HREZWEEIE 258 HIR#
B OR-_E—=F=-ANA %2
TR IEEE N EO)0)E) &b
(ipprit 2 BIER £ B EFIBET W0
T

0] bR 32 5 _E X (o)) B it 2 32 5
AN BT RIRE R AR
WEARXBMNEBAEER
EELEERMBY 2ETL
WhEFUAREEREER
M %EREEATHAANEKE
mMEZEEHE(HELE
R °

i) MEEUBEAZK R
TURBREERZE2MBA
EmtFEMMIEERRRLZ
EERAERS) -

BREZEMARBABMATERBR
BzEE2RY:

() EBAEEFREHEEARR
NAEIRG MISEE 2 LHIA
#EZL115 ERBER
11

i) AEBEzBREEHAEEZ
BEFELAEIER21:

iy AEBzEEFEATIR
A R #550,000,0007C : &

vy MEERBTR®E BEE
BEZFEATLRARY
120,000,0007¢ ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #i & — & —

TET_HA=+—HILFE

27. Other Borrowings (Continued) 27. Ht 58 &)
The evaluation was made considering the Group’s compliance with the ERTRIIREREAEBRREEEBEZY
Notes’ covenants and the directors of the Company believe that there JHEEMELE MAQARESEHE F
were no events of default during the year and up to the date of approval AEEEHEZUEHRES E2BEIT
of these financial statements. EHIRBOSEG -
28. Provisions 28. 15
2012 2011
—F-=F —FT——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBT T
Net carrying amount: BRTEFE -
At 1 January R—HA—H 6,384
Amounts utilised during the year FREHHEEH (187)
At 31 December R+-—A=+—8H 6,197

The Group provides the probable future staff termination benefits
expected to be made to employees of Jing Yang Spinning Mill under
the acquisition agreement dated 14 September 2001. The amount of
the provision is estimated by the Group based on the best estimation
of the probable future payments at the end of reporting period. The
estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis and revised where

appropriate.

AERRPEREARA-_ZEZE—FH
A+ 10 B & Y BB 1 5 )X B 55 AR 4 AR
MEBREARKAIREELNE TR ILE
REHMN FRRGESEIERRREHR
HARKA MO FIRNKREGTET
HE -G EERFEEERHNYL AR
EORREE -
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0] Pursuant to the written resolutions of the then shareholders passed on 24 June
2011, the authorised share capital of the Company was increased from
HK$300,000 to HK$200,000,000 by the creation of an additional of
1,997,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each, ranking pari passu in all respects with

the existing shares of the Company.

(ii) On 21 June 2011, pursuant to the Reorganisation, the then shareholders of
Jade Goal, transferred the entire share capital in Jade Goal to the Company, in
exchange for which the Company allotted and issued at par, credited as fully
paid, 999,900 shares of HK$0.1 each to the then shareholders.

(i)

29. Share Capital 29. g7
Number of Equivalent to
Notes shares HK$’000 RMB’000
HER
B BHEE TET AR T
Authorised: B
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FREEBENIATL EERK
At 1 January 2011 R-_E——F—HF—H 3,000,000 300
Increased in authorised capital SRTE MR N 0] 1,997,000,000 199,700
At 31 December 2011 and 2012 RZIE—FR
—E——-%+-A=+—H 2,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BRIRAE:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BREAECIB T2 TR
At 1 January 2011 R-_ZE——F—A—H 100 - —
Issue of shares in accordance with RIREABEITIRG U
the Reorganisation for acquisition I B = 22
of Jade Goal (ii) 999,900 100 82
Placing and public offer of new shares L& R ARBEEHRND (i) 188,380,000 18,838 15,561
Capitalisation issue BT (i 752,520,000 75,252 62,158
At 31 December 2011 and 2012 RZZE——FR
-+ -A=+—H 941,900,000 94,190 77,801
Notes: B & -

BREEFRER =T ——F~A=-1+NH
BERBZEERER AR AIZEERAE
i% 1B #8 3% %8 5M,997,000,000 f% & A% @ E
01BTHRN (RS HERARATNEEGR
1 = A R % # 7 ) i B3 300,000 7T 38 A0 &
200,000,000 7T °

RZFE——FRAZ+—HB SREHZ
BERBEEEANACTERSR 22K
A ARAR R BREE W E R AR R B #
K 3% 17999,900 8% & IR E EO0.178 7T 2 A fR
S e R D
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29. Share Capital (continuea)

Notes: (Continued)

(iii) Pursuant to the written resolutions passed by the then shareholders of the
Company on 24 June 2011:

(@)

188,380,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each were authorised to be
issued by way of placing and public offer at an issue price of HK$0.7
per share for a total cash consideration, before expenses, of
HK$131,866,000. (A premium of HK$0.6 per share for cash, the excess
of the issue price over the par value of the shares issued upon the
placing and public offer, totaling HK$113,028,000 (equivalent to
RMB93,361,000) was credited to the share premium account of the
Company).

Immediately after the placing and public offer, 752,520,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.1 each were authorised to be allotted and issued,
credited as fully paid, at par to the then shareholders in proportion to
their respective shareholdings on the register of the members of the
Company at the close of business on 24 June 2011 by way of the
capitalisation of the share premium available.

The above mentioned ordinary shares were finally allotted and issued
before the shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board.

29. A (%)

Bi&E

(i)

(%)

BREARAERZBERAN-F——

£ A

“THABBZERERRSR

(@)

188,380,000 #% % A% M {E0.17% T 2
TEREREERBRERAME
EREROTBTHEITEET
38 & (B /131,866,000 7T (&
HBAL) - (BRERHIE S HE0.6
BT R E R AR ERRIT
ERHEZRTRNMEAEZHEAS
$£113,028,0007% T (HER AR
93,361,0007t) ' B & AR R AR5
B )

EHEEESE RAREE R
752,520,000 A% & A% ™ {E0.1 7% 7T /)
ARIIERR L BRERBEEBE
ABAROCEERTER KR _-F
——FRNRAZTHAEERHER
BAARBRRELMATREBFRE
FEFFEZRELR  REERK
Ehl R ET

bt ERBERARR R ER EHAT&RK
WAL % R AT
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30. Reserves

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Other reserve

The other reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of shares of the Company and
the nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the Reorganisation.

Share-based compensation reserve

The share-based compensation reserve represents the
difference between the fair value and consideration of the
shares of the ultimate holding company granted to a
director of the Company for the appreciation of his
contribution to the Group. Further details of the transaction
are set out in the Company’s prospectus dated 28 June
2011.

The fair value of equity interests at the date of grant was
approximately RMB31,223,000 in accordance with the
valuation report from an independent valuer, BMI
Appraisals Limited. The share-based payment expense is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the agreed service
periods, fifteen years, commencing 3 November 2010.
Once the director is left, no share-based payment expense
is further required to be recognised. During the year, the
share-based payment expense of approximately
RMB2,081,000 (2011: RMB2,082,000) is recognised as
part of directors’ remuneration.

30. ff&

AEBZAERE D 2 FN R
FRESHNHERIAN GRS
K e

() EMEE
AEBEMHMBEEIEERR
AR 10 T B B4R B5 & 4R AT K
BOKBARIMBROEEBEZ
R ZE5E -

(i) VAR fD B EME 2 RN

#

VAR 17 & B 2 3k B % 5 48

AR EBSERERIERR

AIMED EAFESRRE

ZHEMEZRE UREZHEHA

SEMNER - BEXIHINE

—FSHBHEHRARGHERA

—E——FXAZ+NBZ

AR EE o

1R ¥R 98 7 il B AD AR A0 B AT
HERARZEBERS &
HEBZREAFENAA
R # 31,223,000 7T ° JA B9 f-F
ORI RARERBEZ
REHB(E_Z—FF+
—RA=ZHBHTHEF)ER-
—BEEHE BEEERER
MDA ROAS FR
LROEZRHRAIHNARE
2,081,000t (ZZE——F : A
R #2,082,0007t) R B £
EMemn—Hr -
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30. Reserves (Continued)

(i)

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, the
Company’s subsidiary registered in the PRC is required to
appropriate 10% of the annual statutory profit after tax (after
offsetting any prior years’ losses) determined in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles in the PRC
to the statutory surplus reserve until the balance of the
reserve fund reaches 50% of the entity’s registered capital.
The statutory surplus reserve can be utilised to offset prior
years’ losses or to increase capital, provided the remaining
balance of the statutory surplus reserve is not less than
25% of registered capital.

31. Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any contingent liabilities at the end of the
reporting period.

32. Pledge of Assets

Details of the Group’s bank borrowings which are secured by the
assets of the Group are included in note 26 to the financial statements.

33. Major Non-Cash Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the major non-cash
transaction of the Group was the capitalisation of certain sums standing
to the credit of the share premium account of the Company pursuant
to the Reorganisation. Further details are set out in note 29 to the
financial statements.

30.

31.

32.

33.

ERENC D)

(i) JEERBRARFEME
BEFEQARE ARAR
o B 5 M 0 Y B A F 8 B
10%RETE ARG R
7 T B0 R R R B 1R 0 A
(BEBERNBEEEBR
BEETRBEHE EEH
BeEBETZEEIME
A HI50% 5 IE © %% B &%
BHEITANEHBEEES
BRANEE 5T HE

BT &%~ LREMEAR
1)25% o
REE

RBERR AEBELEHEEFMHA
BE-

EEEF

A58 B DA KA (A IR O SR AT 1 BB
BB SRR 26 ©
ITRHEERS
RBE-F——F+-A=t—AL%F
 ARENIERREXPARAR

REBEERKRMDEERERNSE TR
B - —SFBHNM B RERME29 -
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34. Operating Lease Arrangements 34. KEHELH
The Group leases its office and factory premises together with NREBREKESHELZHBER NS
machinery under operating lease arrangements. Leases are negotiated EmEERKE F TR —ZEMm
for terms of one to two years, with an option to renew the lease when FE A EBEHEEMARRETRESTE
all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent A - FMBEHHTBESRAES -
rentals.
At the end of reporting period, the Group had future minimum lease RI|ERR REERBETARBELEE
payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as HEZAKRZEBAEZRER 5 HE 3
follows: HY :
2012 2011
—E—_=F —ET——4%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBT T
Within one year —F R 22,000 22,054
35. Capital Commitments 35. ENAEIE
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2012 not provided N ——F+ZA=+—8 N5

for in the financial statements were as follows:

- =
MEARTIRBENERNREDT

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—8H
2012 2011
—E-——F —F——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET ARETT
Contractual commitments for the BLABEYE BE
construction and acquisition of ME#E
property, plant and equipment B U EE 37,817 37,817
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36. Related Party Transactions

(a) Balances and transactions

Other than the related party balances and transactions disclosed
in notes 25 to 27 to the financial statements, during the years
ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group occupied the
land and buildings of Shaanxi Golden Shield as its cotton
spinning/wearing mills at nil consideration.

36. BERIRS

(a EBRXZ
B IERER M A2 21T B 2

MELREHBRISN RAEZF
——HfR=F-—FT=H=F
—BIEFE ARBEEERRE

EEZTMRBTIERRGHN

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of (b) XEFBETEEEAE K FH B
the Group
2012 2011
—E-C=F —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET AREFIT
Short term employee benefits HHEE R 1,506 863
Share-based payment expense AR 5 15 3R B 2 2,081 2,082
3,587 2,945

Further details of directors’ remunerations are included in note 11
to the financial statement.
37. Financial Instruments by Category

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Financial assets — loans and receivables

EHEETHENE—FSHFBIER
SRR FEN o

37. RERETHEMTA

RBEEMRERINERTANEEE

m -

THEE-—BEMREUSE

2012 2011

—E——F —E——F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T AREEF T

Trade receivables FEUE 5 BR X 138,005 259,134
Financial assets included in deposits AR E R EMERKIELZ

and other receivables TREE 22,390 20,580

Pledged and restricted bank deposits EHRZRAIRITFR 93,056 92,383

Cash and cash equivalents RehBReEEY 389,064 143,850

642,515 515,947
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37. Financial Instruments by Category (Continued) 7. REHIATWERMIT R
Financial liabilities — at amortised cost SEEE — ZEBK K
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Trade payables ERE SRR 19,977 7,293
Accruals and other payables FE T R IE I E b JIE T FKIB 20,562 20,453
Interest-bearing bank borrowings sTEIRITER 163,700 199,000
Other borrowings Hifg & 97,178 -
301,417 226,746
38. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 38. eRtEEEEBZFHEBEK

Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise trade receivables,
deposit and other receivables, pledged and restricted bank deposits,
cash and cash equivalents, trade payables, accruals and other
payables interest-bearing bank borrowings and other borrowings.
These financial instruments mainly arise from its operations.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
approximated to their fair values as at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time and are based
on relevant market information about the financial instruments.

These estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and
matters of significant judgment, and therefore cannot be determined
with precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the
estimates.

AEENFEZESM T ARIERKE SR
K FRREMEEFE BREZR
HIRTHER RERRSFEY BN
BHRH Bt RBAREMENKE -
ARBRTERREMEE - ZFE2RT
ETZELBHZE-

REBRSHR AEENESRTANE
HEEZEAFERE - AFEGMETLR
FERBHMBEEREMTE WS
ERHED -

ZEBENBEHILE WS R THAM
RERBEENHENSEE Bt #X
ERET RINVWEBAIESHHEES
REARFE -
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38. Financial Risk Management Objectives and V. emEREERFHEHBE
Policies (continueq) (%)
The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are AREB ZSRIAEMEAZTERR A
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. As MZE - INERR  EERE R
the Group’s exposure to these risks is kept to a minimum, the Group EoRk ANEBTEEZ EK &R b 4
has not used any derivatives and other instruments for hedging BHREKE AREEN &EREMALT
purposes. The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial ATEREMTANESH R REET
instruments for trading purposes. The board of directors of the EEENRTREES Z2T4E ST
Company reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks BE-APRAEESeEHIHEERE
and they are summarised below: FIERER B Bmm T
Interest rate risk means the risk on the fluctuation of fair value on FExmEBEFNEEHARSE T
future cash flows of financial instruments which arise from H ARBESREN2FEEID
changes in interest rates. Floating interest rate instruments will Mo FENANERTABEHRANEF
result in the Group facing the risk of changes in market interest %Tj M EREHO RS - mEE
rate, and fixed interest rate instruments will result in the Group METEBENAREBR®mE QFE
facing fair value interest rate risk. BEF X -
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably TRBERNEMEBEEMEEHREFZT
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held BHERLT  ANEBRKRB =T
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact on (‘ BEHAERZ BRTESR LR
the Group’s bank balances and bank borrowings which are TETERNEE) RAREBRESDS
subject to floating interest rate) and the Group’s equity. E’J FEHEIBOREE ) 2 SRR
DT ©
2012 2011
—E-=fF —F——
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T
Increase/(decrease) in profit before  fif £ I8 RS0 - BT fm
tax and equity if: St F R AE RSB A, O
100 basis points increase = FH100 1 & 2 1,037

100 basis points decrease T K100 1@ £ 24 (1,037)
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38. Financial Risk Management Objectives And V. eREREERFHEHBE
Policies (Continued) (%)

The Group’s businesses are located in the PRC and most of the
transactions are conducted in RMB. Most of the Group’s assets
and liabilities are denominated in RMB. Accordingly, fluctuations
of the exchange rates of RMB against foreign currencies do not
have significant effects on the Group’s results. The Group has
not hedged its foreign exchange rate risk.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to management review. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis
and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant. Since
the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties, there is no requirement for collateral.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which mainly
comprise of cash and cash equivalents and pledged and
restricted bank deposits, arises from potential default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments. Credit risk in cash and cash
equivalents is mitigated as cash is deposited in banks with high
credit rating.

Management of the Group aims to maintain sufficient cash and
cash equivalents and has available funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities to meet its commitments.

NEBMAEBIMNPE - M KE
”“%ﬁMAE%ﬁ o REEK

DPEERBEDIUARESE-
Ilit AR5 ONEE 5 [ 2 8
REBKEE Iﬁﬁéﬁﬁ/ﬁc &
EiEAHINERE KR BETY
o

REBEEHERATREETEN
FEZHETRG -BBEAEEK
WE MEREBREEHRETRS
NEP LEAXBREEREER-
Jﬁt9|\’$’$.ﬁ£§§£%—ﬁfgw KRR
E - MAEEAIZRRER I T E
RNeHRAEEEEERA] REE
AISEME=ZFENTRS QWL EK
HES -

AEBEMEREE(ZEERER
REEBEDUREREIZR
HRTEFONEERRIELS
ZHHFNEBEERY  RSEARE
ENZETANKEE R &R
iﬁfﬁ%E’M*ffﬂ ERREeF
REESEEEFRBORT MR
1’ -

AEBEEEEBERNAERRENR
ERBEEEY AEBARZE
AEEERENRSERESRESTA
HPRES -
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38. Financial Risk Management Objectives and V. eRERERERBFHEBE
Policies (Continued) (&)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

ARETRFEM B R AELE - NEH
RBEEHARNEBRABEZNHAER
m

On demand or

within 1 year
BRERI—FR

2011 2010
—E——F ZT-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARET T
Trade payables BB ZHERER 7,293
Accruals and other payables JFE TR TE K H 4th B {5 3R 08 20,453
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFERITER 208,311
Other borrowings HiEE -
236,057

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as going concern and
to maintain reasonable capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
for managing capital during the reporting period.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debts divided by total equity. Net debts include interest-bearing
bank borrowings, other borrowing, trade payable, accruals and
other payables, income tax payable and provisions less cash and
cash equivalents.

AEBERNEENTIZERER/R
EASBEETHELCLNRE

ARERFEENEARL RAXHF
HER ARBERNOEERARS

= =
BX A

AEBERBEERINEE KA
HEENRBIEEEREHEE AL
BRELAE RERAABER
R AEBEATAERINTERE
B RS AR RR @ E A s BT
M NmESE ERBELRNE
B OBRRIERLERE -

AEBNEABBELX(BEHKFE
BUERSABEREL -BEHF
BHEABRITER  HMEE -
ENE SRR Bt AR EME
NHIE BAANEHEBEERRS
MR EHEY -
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38. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Sk 265 i 3% B ik ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012 & &

Policies (continued)

(e) Capital management (Continued)

(7)

—E——HF+-_A=+—HItFE

At the end of 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group’s strategy
was to maintain the gearing ratio at a healthy capital level in order
to support its businesses. The principal strategies adopted by
the Group include, without limitation, reviewing future cash flow
requirements and the ability to meet debt repayment schedules
when they fall due, maintaining a reasonable level of available

banking facilities and adjusting investment plans and financing

plans, if necessary, to ensure that the Group has a reasonable

level of capital to support its business.

The gearing ratios at the end of 31 December 2012 and 2011

were as follows:

3. crEMEEREZEEEEK
(%)

(e) BEXEHE (&)

RZE—ZFRZF——F+=
A=+—H&FRE AEEAEK
ABRBERNABLEREREER
KFE - U HHER - AEEKR
MEZERBEFTETRNEHNK
RESREBREREL K
ERERERMED  EEATDH
HITHEEASEKE AR FHER
B R ETE(MEE) - DA
BRAEEREFEABKINERST
FEHE -

RZBE——FR-_F——F+=
BE=+T—B&EXREBEHNEXREBERL
BME

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Trade payables FERTE 5B 19,977 7,293
Accruals and other payables JE BT RN IE I H fh FE A5 FRIE 20,562 20,453
Income tax payable FE TS HE 1,866 9,907
Provisions B 6,011 6,197
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFEHRITER 163,700 199,000
Other borrowings HifEE 97,178 —
Less: Cash and cash equivalents WoBEERBESEEY (389,064) (143,850)
Net debts B EE (79,770) 99,000
Total equity o R g 670,081 627,547
Gearing ratio ERBELER (11.90)% 15.78%
Fair value estimation fH XFELZEHE
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying values ARAREERAZEEREEK
of those financial assets and liabilities are assumed to BENFEEEEAFERS

approximate their fair values.
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39. Statement of Financial Position of the Company

39. 7N T B 3 AR R ] &

F 3R 2012

2012 2011
—E——F —E——fF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 7 ARET T ARBT T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary RWBREIERE 83 83
Current assets RENEE
Amount due from subsidiaries FEUCHI B A "3 IE (a) 81,946 43,610
Prepayment, deposits and ENRE ek
other receivable H b FE R 3R I8 357 270
Pledged and restricted bank deposits  # ¥ [z 5 [ 1| §8 17 17 7% 93,056 92,383
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIES 302 2,095
175,661 138,358
Current liabilities nEEE
Amount due to a subsidiary JE 1 — RS B B A B FRIA @) - 48,744
Accruals and other payables BT A R A b FE N A 3,470 1,946
Amount due to a director B —ZEEHE - 1,287
Other borrowings HinfEE 97,178 —
100,648 51,977
Net current assets REBEEFEE 75,013 86,381
Net assets EEFHE 75,096 86,464
Capital and reserves BARHE
Share capital A& 2 29 77,801 77,801
Share premium A1 % (B (0) 16,410 16,410
Share-based compensation reserve AR 15 /& B 7 7 SR B % & (o) 4,163 2,082
Foreign currency translation reserve 51 ¥ & 5 5 7 (697) -
Accumulated losses B ] (© (22,581) (9,829)
Total equity EREE 75,096 86,464
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39.

40.

41.

42.

Statement of Financial Position of the Company
(Continued)

(@) The balance with subsidiaries is non-interest bearing, unsecured and has no
fixed terms of repayment.

(b) The movements for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

() Of the Group’s profit attributable to owners of the Company, a loss of
RMB12,752,000 (2011: RMB9,829,000) has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

Events after the Reporting Period

The conditional asset acquisition agreement dated 7 February 2013
was entered into between Weinan Huafu as purchaser and the
Proposed Target as vendor and Golden Shield JY in connection with
the acquisition of the Leased Production Facilities (the “Acquisition”) in
a consideration of RMB198,109,000. The Acquisition has not been
completed up to the date of approval of these financial statements.
Further details of the Acquisition are set out in an announcement of the
Company dated 7 February 2013.

Parent and Ultimate Holding Company
At 31 December 2012, the Directors consider the parent and ultimate

holding company of the Company to be Tong Fa, which is incorporated
in BVI.

Approval of the Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
board of directors on 25 March 2013.

39. AR B B AR R 3R 3k (2)

40. R = HA

41.

42.

@ MBRARAZAEHRARE BEMREREE

b)) AFERBEFEZEPRGAEDED
e
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AR¥12,752,000(Z T ——F : AR¥
9,829,0007T) Z BB E 5t A AR 7] B 15 )
E R
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BEA)REEXBIZAEHAE -
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198,109,000 7t Y g 1 & A Z= &% e ([ W g
FHDZERKHEEKREHZ REE
WET B RAREMEZ A WIEEE
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